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T

he Landings Association, established
in August 1972, is a nonprofit corporation formed
to promote the health,
safety, and welfare of the
residents of e Landings
on Skidaway Island. Every
person or entity who is an
owner of record in any lot
or living unit which is subject to covenants of record is
a member of the corporation (Association). e
Landings Association owns,
operates, and maintains the
common properties and facilities, and provides security services within the
community.
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2010 proved to be a banner year for your Landings Association. In this
report, I shall endeavor to describe the state of the Association and give
you a sense of the accomplishments of the past year.
The sTraTegic Plan
Through the leadership and dedicated effort of Dr. Dick Dent, chair of
the Strategic Planning Committee, a complete and thoughtful Strategic
Plan now is in place. Because I most firmly believe in the importance of
this effort, I felt that every one of our residents should know what is in the
plan. It starts with
our Vision:
We continue to be the most desirable private residential community in
the coastal Southeast.
Our vision is attained through a focus on these enduring principals:
• Effective and financially sound governance
• Sustaining the beauty of our natural and developed environment
• Fostering a connected and caring community
• Effective marketing of The Landings
• Powerful internal and external communication
The enduring principals are further defined by Strategic Goals and Objectives with definable measures. Finally, the Board has approved and
promulgated a specific set of goals for 2011. In sum, the guiding blueprints for the future are firmly in place. You can see more detail on the Association website (www.landings.org).

The Financial PicTure
This report contains details on the finances of the Association together
with the Treasurer’s report. The important overall point to be made about
the financial picture is that revenues exceeded expenses, and targets for
reserves continued to be met. Members’ equity, the difference between
the liabilities the Association currently has on its books (long- and shortterm debt, deferred revenue, and payables) and assets (cash, investments,
and fixed assets), represents how much the Association theoretically is
“worth” at a point in time. Over the past year, equity has increased by 4%
to $11.4M. We also have $3.9M invested in certificates of deposit. Thus,
the Association is in a very solid and sound financial situation. In sum,
these important points are good indicators of the prudent and effective
management of the resources you provide to make The Landings lifestyle
the envy of others.
ProjecTs, Programs, and Purchases
A major responsibility of the Association is to maintain the community
appearance and infrastructure at high standards. Over the past year, literally dozens of projects, programs, and purchases have contributed to the
quality of life that we continue to enjoy. Here are a few of the most significant accomplishments:
• The Marsh Tower was totally renovated and brought up to current
safety standards.
• The Delegal Marina was reconstructed, and a Grand Opening was
held for the community.
• The Deer Creek Bridge was re-decked.
• 1,477 mailboxes and street signs were repainted, and 788 mailboxes
and street signs were repaired.
• 16,600 linear feet of cart paths were reconstructed.
➤
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• 213,196 square yards of roads were repaved, and 246 linear feet
of curb repairs and patching were completed.
• Three vehicles were purchased. Tires were replaced on the F-650
truck, and repairs were made to extend the useful life of this vehicle.
• The roof of the Administration building was replaced.
• A negative lift forklift was purchased for Landings Marina, and the
tarmac was reconfigured to accommodate this new machine.
• Lagoon structure #1was reconstructed, and #2 and #115 were
repaired.
• Emergency generators were installed at the Marshview Landing and
Deer Creek North gates.
• Automatic Gates were installed at Deer Creek and Deer Creek
North.
• Irrigation was completed at the Marshwood Gate, Tidewater
Square, and the Oakridge Gate.
• Modifications were made at the Recycling Center to improve the
costs of that operation.
• A location for the Community Garden was finalized in cooperation
with The Landings Club and Skidaway Audubon. The property
is adjacent to the Chipping Facility off of McWhorter Road.
• Water conservation efforts and publicity were reenergized.
ParTnering
A major effort was made among the three Landings organizations to
collaborate and cooperate — the Association, the Club, and The Landings
Company. This led to the review of community governance by The Landings Commission on Governance and Organizational Synergies, led by
John Kane. Through the guidance offered by the Commission, efforts
continue to determine if efficiencies and savings can be realized among

the three organizations. This has been particularly helpful in the relationship and mutual support between the Club and the Company.
The FuTure
While I firmly believe that the Association is well positioned for the future,
there are challenges ahead that all of us must keep in mind. Among these
are:
• Whether to adopt the Georgia Property Owner’s Association Act
• Whether to adopt a new set of covenants
• The creation and review of the upcoming three-year Assessment
• Decisions on methods to maintain a robust national marketing
program
Thanks
As I pass the gavel to Jim McInerney and congratulate him on his election to the presidency, I extend my heartfelt thanks to all who have contributed to this most successful year for the Association. That group
includes the Board, the Association staff, and the many volunteers on the
committees that serve the community. Particular thanks go to Dick Dent
and Gerry Von Bargen as they depart the Board following the completion
of their three-year terms.
I have enjoyed this past year and now look forward to continued service in the capacity of ex-officio.

John sobke
President
The Landings Association
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committees:
goVernance
Lorraine Boice, Chair
Chuck Beck
Dick Dent
Jim Rich
Jim Scott
Staﬀ Liaisons:
Shari Haldeman
Karl Stephens

sTraTegic
Planning
Dick Dent, Chair
Chuck Beck
Lorraine Boice
Dick Dent
Jim McInerney
Lou Molella
Jim Rich
Jim Scott
John Sobke
Gerry Von Bargen
Staﬀ Liaison:
Shari Haldeman
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In spite of difficult national and
regional economic conditions continuing into 2010, the past year
proved to be successful for The
Landings Association. Thanks to
concerted efforts over time in long
range financial planning, including multi-year budgeting, capital
planning, and reserve funding for
capital replacements, the Association remained financially healthy
through 2010 and has entered
2011 with continued goals of delivering high quality service to our
property owners. This Annual Report identifies many of the opportunities taken during the year to
provide value-added services, challenge status quo in operations, and
leverage available resources to take
advantage of competitive construction markets that continued
into the first half of 2010. Many
of these opportunities were taken
in partnership with our numerous
volunteers — property owners
who contribute their significant
skills and talent to support and
supplement our efforts to maintain and enhance the community.
We are extremely fortunate and
truly appreciative of the many
contributions you provide.

Pine straw Program
The volunteers who serve on our
Development Committee conceptualized and assisted staff with the
successful pilot Pine Straw Program as a way to promote the Association’s Lawn and Landscape
guidelines and increase community aesthetics in a cost effective
and convenient manner. Purchasing quality long-leaf pine straw in
bulk enabled the Association to
offer it to residents at a lower cost
than normally available. Options

included delivery to their property
for $3.25 per bale or delivery and
installation for $5.25 per bale. Participation exceeded expectations,
with 655 property owners placing
orders totaling 28,279 bales. As a
result of the successful pilot, the
Association will be offering the
pine straw program again in the
spring of 2011.

capital Projects
During the first half of the year,
we leveraged highly-competitive
construction markets produced by
the poor economy. A number of
capital projects were undertaken,
as described elsewhere in this report. Several projects, however,
represent well the manner in
which business is conducted at the
Association and are worthy of further note.
Several financial objectives were
achieved in the 2010 replacement
of irrigation systems. The 1988
Marshwood (North) gate system
and the 1990 Tidewater Square
system were scheduled for replacement in 2010. The solicitation of
bids from four companies generated strong competition, and the
low bid was $19,358 below
budget. As a result, the 2011
scheduled replacement of the
1991 Oakridge gate irrigation system was accelerated and included
in the 2010 contract to take advantage of the low unit prices. The
total cost of these three systems
was $47,967, compared with the
combined $90,000 budgeted in
2010 and 2011.
In addition, the equipment and
installation design advanced our
efforts to reduce water consumption and utility costs. Watering
zones were delineated based on the
requirements of specific plant ma-

terials, improving the accuracy of
the amounts provided to turf,
shrubs, and bedded areas. Solar
sync sensors now automatically
control water requirements based
on solar and temperature data to
calculate whether or not water is
needed. Matched precipitation
(MP) rotator sprinkler heads also
were installed, which emit water at
1/3 the rate of conventional spray
heads, allowing soil to absorb the
water more efficiently.

Preventative
maintenance
A strong preventive maintenance
program supports our efforts to reduce short- and long-term costs by
extending the useful life of our assets. Our 2002 Ford F-650 dump
truck was scheduled for replacement in the 2010 Capital Asset
Management Plan. However, regular and thorough maintenance
enabled us to extend its useful life
by an additional two years. Rather
than spend the $40,000 scheduled
in the reserve fund for replacement, $5,875 was spent on new
tires and metal fabrication to refurbish the dump bed. The replacement schedule for this asset
was extended until 2013, reducing
depreciation expense by $4,265
over the two years.

➤

continued on Page 22

AR guts 2010 REVISED.qxd:Layout 1

2/8/11

3:23 PM

Page 5

L

andings Association Department Managers

shari haldeman

matt amman

karl stephens

General Manager/
Chief Operating Oﬃcer

Community Development
Manager

Chief Administrative Oﬃcer/
Finance Director

cayce girardeau

Bryan deal

Paul kurilla

david Willsie

HR/Organizational
Eﬀectiveness
Director

Marinas
Business Manager

Public Works
Director

Chief of Security

5

AR guts 2010 REVISED.qxd:Layout 1

2/8/11

3:23 PM

Page 6

C

ommunity development

community development
mission statement
maTT amman
Community Development
Manager
2010
committees:
archiTecTural
reVieW
Helen Duﬀy, Chair
Deborah Chiles
Sidney Daniell
Bill Haeger
Bill Jessup
Ann Koontz
Ernie Sweek
Phillip Williams
Architect:
Gary Watkins
Board Liaison:
Lorraine Boice
Staﬀ Liaison:
Matt Amman

deVeloPmenT
Jan Wright, Chair
Doug Fuss
Genevieve Harris
John Kinnaman
Frank Laevey
James Overton
Patricia Shea
James Smiley
Raymond Suelflow
Board Liaisons:
Dick Dent
Jim McInerney
Staﬀ Liaisons:
Matt Amman
Shari Haldeman
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The mission of the Community
Development Department is to
strengthen the long-term competitive
position of The Landings by maintaining, protecting, and improving
a fundamental community asset –
our quality housing stock. The Department consists of the following
programs: Architecture and Development. Each program area fulfills
a specific role to support the strategic
objectives of the Department; to ensure adherence to and consistency
with the architectural standards of
The Landings and compliance with
the General Declaration of
Covenants and Restrictions of The
Landings Association; and to support
reinvestment in personal property.

2010
highlighTs
department
organization
Due to decreasing construction
activity associated with the economic downturn, the Community
Development Department was reorganized and streamlined in 2009
to match the decrease in workload.
In 2010, one employee continued
to handle the primary duties of the
department, including plan review
and construction inspections.
Clerical and administrative support for architectural services is
provided by the Information Services Center staff.

architectural
review
The Architectural Review Committee maintained its schedule of
two meetings per month, which
creates a more efficient and effective turnaround time from permit
application to formal approval. We
continue to promote pre-review
meetings with residents, consult-

ants, and contractors in order to
identify alternatives to potential
problem areas and increase
chances of first-pass success. In late
2010, we modified our project
tracking process to identify better
areas of new construction and renovation activity. We now maintain
both an electronic copy and a wallmounted map depicting all permit
activity. This data will assist our
planning efforts for encouraging
renovation.
In early 2010, it was determined
that a separate appeals board was
not permitted within current General Declaration of Covenants and
Restrictions and thus, formal appeals will continue to be handled
by the Architectural Review Committee.

home renovation
Tour and expo
In November, the Development
Committee, in conjunction with
the Association staff, hosted an
event designed to promote and encourage improvements to personal
real property, bringing together industry consultants, contractors,
and residents. The purpose was to
raise awareness, educate, demonstrate, and inspire Landings property owners to renovate their
property. Hundreds of residents
participated in the event, which
included both a tour of existing
renovated properties and an exposition highlighting industry experts and informative sessions on
home improvement. The partnership team, comprised of the Association, The Landings Company,
The Landings Club, Skidaway
Audubon, Utilities, Inc., and Prudential Southeast Coastal Properties, made the event a success. The
Tour consisted of 10 Landings
homes and two properties located
inside the Marshes, and the Expo
included 23 industry expert vendors.

communications
outreach
Monthly columns regarding personal property improvement and
lawn and landscape tips were published in The Landings Journal.

2011
eXPecTaTions
architectural
review
We will continue to evaluate existing policies for process improvement
through
follow-up
interviews, proactive education efforts, competitor research, and resident feedback requests. The
tracking map will be maintained
in the Community Development
Department depicting personal
property construction activity.

development
The Development Committee
will develop a land use plan for the
undeveloped and underdeveloped
Association common property.
This plan will be used to support
amenity development opportunities and will assist in planning for
both passive and active development.
The Committee will explore
possible renovation incentives for
personal property improvement
through competitor benchmarking and research efforts. We plan
to host a Property Maintenance
Tour in late 2011, highlighting
personal property maintenance
and investment. Best practice
guidelines for maintenance and
personal property improvement
are under development, and this
document will assist residents with
expectations for a neat and wellkept property. Community outreach will be ongoing through
educational seminars, articles in
The Landings Journal, and staff
consultations.
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Total Lots
Total Homes Completed
Number of Permits Issued:
New Home Construction
Additions to Existing Homes
Renovation/Alteration to Existing Homes
Dumpsters/PODs/Land Clearing

2010

2009

4,422
3,991

4,422
3,986

4
40
107
49

8
33
164
29
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C

ommunity relations

community relations
mission statement
karl sTePhens
Chief Administrative
Oﬃcer and
Finance Director

2010
committee:

The mission of the Community Relations Department is to provide
timely information and services,
mainly to external customers, while
also providing and servicing the information technology backbone for
The Landings Association. The Department consists of the Communications Program, the Information
Services Center Program, and the
Information Technology Program.

communicaTions
Gary Herrman, Chair
Michael Auen
Ed Case
Anita Clos
Joyce Glenn
Marolyn Overton
Chris Savage
Don Schoenwald
Board Liaison:
Lou Molella
Landings Company Liaison:
Rosemary Longueira
Staﬀ Liaisons:
Karl Stephens
Doré Ayers
Lynn Lewis

2010
highlighTs
streamlining of
The Landings Journal
In the spring of 2010, The Landings Journal was completely overhauled, both visually and
structurally. Utilizing a printing
process unavailable until recently,
we also have reduced printing expenses approximately $40,000 per
year. This new web-based process
has introduced us to new heights
in full-color visuals and has been
met very favorably within the
community. Additionally, the fullcolor process and competitive advertising rates have increased
advertisements, which now defray
the bulk of production expenses.

storage Yard
enhancements
The Association has placed a renewed focus on the three Storage
Yards on the island. These facilities
are designed for storage of items
such as trailers, RVs, and various
watercraft under 14-feet-long. In a
collective effort of staff and current
users of the facilities, we have redesigned and enhanced the Storage Yards by repositioning lot
spaces and sprucing up the facilities.
8

Bridge and road Project
We have continued working
with the Association’s Bridge
Committee and various officials to
speed and monitor the replacement of the bridge and road work;
to provide input as we can on the
aesthetics; to work on emergency
plans should our current bridge
become impassable; and to report
back to the Board and the community on the same. This included our annual Landings
Elected Officials Roundtable,
where this topic was discussed,
among others, with our local,
state, and federal representatives.
This project now is underway, and
the new, fixed bridge is scheduled
to be installed and operational before the end of 2012.

governmental affairs
The Association’s Governmental
Affairs Committee (GAC) reviewed the County’s Special Services District (SSD) budget for
better understanding of expenses
and revenues. The GAC also reviewed the potential for incorporation, and determined not to
recommend incorporation or to
take further action with the SSD
at this time. The Landings Commission on Governance and Organizational Synergies as well
recommended the Board not continue any further work on the Incorporation Study at this time.

2011
eXPecTaTions
Website replacement
Research that began in 2010 will
be completed, with a replacement
Landings Association website created and implemented. This website will tie into our property
owner and commercial vendor
database, and will allow our customers to interact more fully with
The Landings Association on a
24/7 basis, while also providing
more efficiency for Association
personnel.

governmental affairs
We will continue to focus on the
timely replacement of the Skidaway Narrows drawbridge with a
fixed bridge, as well as on receiving more timely communications
that we can share with our residents in advance of disruptive
bridge work. In addition, we will
review with the Governmental Affairs Committee on how best to
partner with the County and other
agencies on updating ordinances.

Three-Year
assessment Vote
The next Association Assessment
Vote, covering the years 20122014, will be conducted in the fall
of 2011. Our Covenants require
that at least 60% of all owners take
part in this vote, with at least twothirds of those voting approving
the new Assessment plan. There
will be multiple chances for community input into this process, as
well as educational events
throughout the year.
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F
community events
LandingsFest on the Green continues to be the Association’s
major community event. In addition, a team of Association and
Marina employees will oversee and
execute monthly cookouts at the
Sunset Pavilion on Delegal Creek,
replacing the cookouts that had alternated between Delegal Creek
and Landings Harbor. The newlycompleted structure at Delegal offers far more conveniences for its
participants, and the centralization
of this popular community activity is expected to result in higher

attendance at the cookouts as a result. Communication for these
events also will be more comprehensive throughout the season.

one-stop services
Our Community Relations Representatives are committed to
maintaining the highest levels of
customer service, and continue to
strengthen the convenience of the
“one-stop service” motto at the Association’s Administration building. This centrally-located facility
coordinates items such as barcode
processing and amenity reserva-

tions, and also acts as a clearing
house for common questions. Twoand-a-half positions were eliminated during 2009-2010 due to
reduced commercial activity and
architectural permitting requirements, as well as the outsourcing of
our Information Technology support. However, the 2011 budget
includes adding back one part-time
position to alleviate delays that can
occur in our customer service function during periods of heavy demand.

2010
committees:
goVernmenTal
aFFairs
omas Sharp, Chair
Hal Duensing
Danny Kight
Al Moran
Hank Policinski
Ben Wright
Board Liaison:
Jim Rich
Staﬀ Liaisons:
Karl Stephens
David Willsie

Bridge
Bill Foster, Sr.
Bill Merz
Russ Peterson
Howard Stryker
Board Liaisons:
Lou Molella
Jim Rich

Photo by Fred Langley©

S

tatistics

Association E-Mail Bulletin Subscribers
Association E-Mail Bulletins Distributed
Barcodes Processed
Employee Photo IDs Processed

2010

2009

3,836
182
2,964
195

3,391
147
N/A
234

TLC Liaison:
Mike Perham
Staﬀ Liaisons:
Paul Kurilla
Karl Stephens
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F

inance

Finance
mission statement
karl sTePhens
Chief Administrative
Oﬃcer and
Finance Director

2010
committee:
Finance and
audiT
Jim McInerney, Chair
Al Arcady
Chuck Beck
Lorraine Boice
Jerry Grader
Ann Hanley
John Kane
Charles Koepke
Lou Molella
Jim Rich
Wim Salien
Jim Scott
TLC Liaison:
Phil Turek
Staﬀ Liaisons:
Karl Stephens
Judy Spooner
Shari Haldeman
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The mission of the Finance Department is to manage prudently
The Landings Association’s financial
resources; to assure compliance with
applicable laws and policies governing financial transactions; and to
provide timely and accurate information about the Association’s financial position, including technical
support. The Department consists of
the following program areas: Accounting, Financial Management,
Reporting, Insurance Risk Management, and Billing and Collection of
Assessments.

2010
highlighTs

Billing

Financial management

In 2010, the Association enlisted
a local attorney to help collect on
past due Association and Marina
debts, and became more aggressive
in this area. During the year, the
Finance Department prepared
4,422 (4,410 billable lots) property owner assessment statements,
of which 414 elected to participate
in the quarterly payment plan.
The Department generated the
following invoices on a monthly
basis: approximately 800 marina
statements; several service agreement statements to The Landings
Club, Marina, and The Landings
Company; and approximately 30
Landings Journal advertiser statements.

This function provided information to the staff, committees, and
Board on financial policy, financial
management, reporting, and other
matters affecting the short- and
long-term financial condition of
the Association. The Department
provided support to the General
Manager in the development of
the Long Range Financial Plan
and annual operational and capital budgets, and made recommendations to the Board of Directors
when appropriate. We also held
monthly meetings with all departments to review current Revenue
and Expense statements, allowing
for more accountability and better
budgeting throughout the organization. The accuracy of the Association’s financial statements for
2010 was tested during an annual
external audit conducted by an independent CPA firm. This audit
resulted in an unqualified opinion,
no reportable conditions, and no
significant recommendations.

accounting
Banking and investments
In 2010, a team of Association
employees partnered with a Banking and Investment Subcommittee
from the Association’s Finance
Committee to review our banking
and investment options. Following
an extensive process with competing local banks, the Association
decided to consolidate its banking
relationship for the Association
and Marinas from two separate
banks into one. This has provided
lower costs and more efficiency.
This also allowed the Association
to establish a Purchase Card program to replace credit cards, which
should result in rebates paid to the
Association each year.
Further, the Association determined to move the majority of its
investments from Treasury Bills
earning close to 0% interest to the
CDARS program. This program
allows
investments
above
$250,000 to be spread among participating banks so that all money
remains FDIC insured while also
returning a higher interest rate
than T-Bills. Interest earned on the
CDs ranged from .25% to1.05%
in 2010.

The Department is responsible
for auditing and depositing daily
cash receipts from the reception
desk activities, North Gate daily
commercial pass sales, and from
sales at the two marinas. These include vehicle and Dog Park registrations, daily pass fees from the
gate, and retail operations at the
Marinas, averaging a total of
$5,000 daily. In addition, the Department issued more than 200
vendor checks per month, totaling
more than $230,000. Payroll is administered in-house, which
equates to approximately 70 paychecks every two weeks, totaling
about $97,000.

insurance risk
management
This program acquired insurance
for those areas of operation and assets in which the Association’s risk
control techniques do not adequately cover losses the Board is
not willing to assume. Risk control
techniques include exposure
avoidance, loss prevention, loss reduction, segregation of exposures,
and contractual transfer. This was
accomplished by understanding
the value of the Association’s assets
by conducting periodic appraisals,
including a full appraisal by an external firm of major infrastructure
assets; understanding the areas of
potential exposure; having general
knowledge of the insurance market; and monitoring losses.

AR guts 2010 REVISED.qxd:Layout 1

2/8/11

3:24 PM

Page 11

F
2011
eXPecTaTions
Property and casualty
insurance
With the aid of the Association’s
Insurance Committee, we began a
property and casualty insurance
broker competition in 2010,
which was completed in January
2011. This competition reviewed
several, competing brokers, including the two currently used by
the Association, on such measures
as expertise and level of support.
Following completion of the competition, we consolidated all property and casualty insurance broker
activities with one firm, to allow
more streamlined communications as well as some cost savings.

2010
committee:
insurance
Donald Campbell
Jack Coderre
Dan DeGood
Jack Sherrill
Jack Tesinsky
Staﬀ Liaisons:
Karl Stephens
Kim Kouba

401-k review
The Association’s 401-k program
will be evaluated against competing options, as we analyze how
best to provide suitable investment
options at the lowest costs to both
our employees and to the Association.

Photo by Doug Herrick©

S

tatistics

Payable Checks Produced
Payment Checks/ACH/
Cash Deposits Processed
Property Transfers Processed

2010

2009

5,492

5,212

10,983

10,570

283

116
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H

uman resources / organizational eﬀectiveness

caYce girardeau
HR/OE Director

human resources/
organizational
effectiveness mission
statement
The primary mission of the
Human Resources and Organizational Effectiveness Department is to
design and implement systems, structures, and processes to increase the effectiveness of each individual and
the organization as a whole. This
mission is accomplished primarily
though the following program areas:
Recruiting and Retention, Organizational and Individual Development, Total Compensation, and our
Workplace Culture.

2010
highlighTs

12

organizational/
individual development

Total compensation/
Benefits

2010 was a year of focus on our
continued efforts toward becoming a High Performing Organization. All employees participated in
workshops on High Performing
Organizations (HPO) and identified areas that they could positively
impact the Association’s focus on
continuous improvement. Additionally, we established renewed
focus on training, both technical
and non-technical, with 81% of all
employees participating in another
targeted training or development
activity during the year. Managers
and supervisors led quarterly values discussion groups for all employees. These will continue in
2011.

Monitoring of our retirement
and benefits plans continues to indicate that the Association is competitive within the Savannah
market. Currently 88% of all eligible employees participate in our
401k plan, and 85% of eligible
employees participate in our medical insurance plan. The Association continues to refine our health
benefits programs to ensure their
competitiveness in the marketplace while controlling expenses.
In 2010 and 2011, employees
moved to plans with higher deductibles and assumed a higher
percentage of the premium. Because of these changes, medical expenses for 2010 were approximately 26% below budget, and
the plan for 2011 is a 4% increase
over 2010.
A salary survey of all employee
positions at the Association was
performed in 2010, and the data
indicated that the average wage for
the majority of our positions was
within 5% of the market. Several
of our positions were more than
10% below the competitive average, and adjustments to our target
values were addressed in the classification and compensation plan
for 2011.

recruiting and retention

Workplace culture

Total turnover for 2010 was
18.2%, which is lower than in
2009, with only 2.8% considered
regrettable. During the year, The
Landings Association hired 10
fulltime employees, with all beginning work in less than 60 days
from the opening of the position.
(Average time to fill was 31 days.)
We did not fill all budgeted positions in 2010. The cost per hire in
2010 was very low due to consolidated recruiting efforts with The
Landings Club.

Landings Association employees
continued to focus on operational
improvements during 2010. Every
department worked on process
improvements within, and across,
departments. Cross-functional
teams of employees at all levels of
the organization led efforts in areas
such as wellness, events planning,
and environmental management.
In 2011, a team will be formed to
organize the community events related to the cookouts function.
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2011
eXPecTaTions
recruiting and retention
Our focus in 2011 will be on refining our interviewing and orientation process. We have begun
using group, behavioral-based interviewing techniques for some
positions and will expand that further into the organization. We will
continue to focus on evaluating
any opening to determine if it
needs to be refilled.

Total compensation/
Benefits
We will continue to evaluate our
compensation, benefits, and retirement plans to ensure that they
are competitive and support recruiting, retention, and a culture
of accountability.

Workplace culture
We will continue to focus on
driving a culture of high performance, performance measurement,
and customer satisfaction. We also
will continue the use of employee
teams to drive operational initiatives to maintain a workplace that
is safe, productive, compliant
with applicable laws, and one that
aligns with the Vision and Values
of the Association.

organizational/
individual development
During 2011, continued emphasis will be placed on supervisor
and employee training and development. Managers and Supervisors will participate monthly in
group action plan meetings focused on HPO initiatives and
training and will lead values training sessions for employees. All employees will participate again in
training focused on values, communication, and customer service.
Additionally, employees are being
encouraged to participate in a new
Association-wide job shadowing
program currently under development.

Photo by Fred Langley©
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tatistics
2010

2009

Total Landings Association Employees

67

73

Employees Hired

10

13

13
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marinas
mission statement

BrYan deal
Marinas Business
Manager

2010
committee:
marinas
Marty Vernick, Chair
David Angell
Jamie Chisolm
Cam Harvey
Dan Huﬀer
Bob Wheaton

Board Liaison:
Jim Scott
Staﬀ Liaison:
Bryan Deal
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The mission of the Marinas is to
provide and promote boating and
waterfront activities within The
Landings by operating and maintaining two marinas — Landings
Harbor and Delegal Creek. In addition to permanent wet and dry boat
storage, the Marinas provide services
through a sailing program, retail
store operations, transient boat services, and marine repair services
through an outsourced provider. The
Marinas support their operations
and capital expenses through the collection of user fees and the sale of
goods and services.

2010
highlights
landings harbor marina
In 2010, the Marinas made several significant updates in equipment and facilities. At Landings
Harbor Marina, a new Wiggins
LoPro negative forklift was purchased, and one of the boat hoist
elevators was removed. This purchase represents a major improvement in operating equipment and
provides the opportunity for improved customer service, safety,
and operating efficiencies. In addition, elimination of one of the
elevators has reduced future capital
requirements. The use of the new
forklift also has allowed Landings
Harbor to increase its capacity for
the size of vessel that can be stored.
In addition to the purchase of
the Wiggins forklift, the Marinas
also purchased 23 new free-standing boat wash racks. These racks
were purchased to provide the
safest storage option for the vessels
and also have increased the Marinas’ capacity for larger and heavier
vessels. The new racks, which were
discovered through benchmarking
with nine other marinas in Geor-

gia and Florida, are engineer certified and stamped for a capacity of
20,000 pounds.

2011
expectations

marine repair service

landings harbor
retail store

The outsourced Marine Services
Center continues to be operated
by Phil Dolan Yacht Services.
Having an onsite repair service is
a point of differentiation from our
competitors.

sailing Program
The primary goal of this program is to allow residents to learn
to sail in a supportive environment
and to sail without having to own
a sailboat. The Marinas own seven
boats for this purpose and charge
participants a monthly fee. Weekend races promote camaraderie
among participants. Membership
in the sailing program varies seasonally and has consistently generated revenue in excess of program
expenses. The program is fully
managed by its members, who also
handle much of the required
maintenance.

cookouts
Cookouts returned to Delegal in
2010, with the reopening of the
Delegal Structure, with Wednesday cookouts being conducted out
of the Sunset Pavilion on a weekly
basis. In addition to the Delegal
events on Wednesday nights, the
tiki bar at Landings Harbor also
was utilized for Friday night cookout events every week, weather
permitting. These events continued to be popular attractions for
Landings residents, offering live
entertainment and an expanded
selection of food vendors such as
Barnes, The Landings Club,
Shane’s Rib Shack, and B.
Matthews Eatery.

Landings Harbor Marina provides residents, resident boaters,
and transient boaters with a variety of merchandise available for
purchase, including clothing, bait,
tackle, ice, drinks, snack foods,
and fuel. Efforts at the Landings
Harbor store for 2011 will focus
on supplying merchandise that
meets both customer needs and
our target margins, maintaining
accurate store inventory, and concentrating on customer service
that will provide a safe and enjoyable experience for anyone visiting
Landings Harbor Marina.

cookouts
In 2011, the cookout events will
be planned, organized, and executed by a joint team of Marina
and Association employees. Given
that the cookout events serve as an
amenity for the entire Landings
community rather than just marina members, it will be most appropriate for the operation of the
cookouts to be managed through
this joint team. The cookouts in
2011 will be held at the Sunset
Pavilion at Delegal Creek once per
month, rain or shine. This location will offer property owners the
opportunity to use the indoor facility of the Sunset Pavilion as well
as the new pier, tower, and
screened-in porch at Delegal
Creek.
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operation/Facility
improvements
In 2011, the primary focus areas
for the Marinas include increasing
revenues through an increase in
overall occupancy rates, a continued focus on customer service and
employee training, and increasing
waterfront usage by Landings residents through events and activities at the Marinas.
Rack occupancy at Landings
Harbor historically nears capacity
during the peak season. However,
the Marinas experienced a slight
decrease in overall occupancy rates
in the dry storage facility as more
people look to sell their vessels or
find less costly alternatives for boat
storage, a symptom of the economy.
One of the primary initiatives in
2011 will be to continue the work
which began in 2010 of identifying and targeting prospective customers for the Marinas in order to
increase the occupancy rates for
Landings Harbor dry storage and
Delegal Creek wet slips. By surveying and interviewing potential
customers and benchmarking with
other marina facilities, the Marinas staff and Marinas Committee
will identify improvement opportunities and operational adjustments that can be made to attract
new guests and customers.
Several improvement projects
were completed at both marina facilities in early 2011. At Delegal
Creek Marina, the Aids to Navigation that mark the channel entrance into Delegal Creek have
been replaced and upgraded with
new, larger and lighted markers.
Additionally, two “No Wake”
buoys have been added, one at
each side of the marina docks, and
a welcoming “Delegal Creek Marina” entrance sign has been added
to the first channel marker pile at
the entrance of the creek.
At Landings Harbor Marina, the
Wiggins negative forklift tires have

been replaced with white, nonmarking tires. This change eliminates the black residue that
originates from the black truck
tires and creates a more positive
experience for all of the Marinas’
guests.

Photo by Doug Herrick©
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tatistics

landings harbor
276 Dry Rack Storage (maximum length 30 feet)
2010 Occupancy: 76%
28 Wet Slip Storage (maximum length 45 feet)
2010 Occupancy: 100%
delegal creek marina
74 Wet Slip Storage (maximum length 100 feet)
2010 Occupancy: 50%
15
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ublic Works

Public Works
mission statement
Paul kurilla
Public Works Director
2010
committee:
PuBlic
Works
Bob Egan, Chair
Blake Caldwell
Jim Catington
Bill Foster, Sr.
David Grosse
Steve Rice
Kathy Siler
Nancy Strobel
Ron Weber
Landings Club Liaison:
Vicki McElreath
Board Liaison:
Chuck Beck
Staﬀ Liaison:
Paul Kurilla

The mission of the Public Works
Department is to ensure that The
Landings is a well-maintained community which operates at a good
value for its property owners by
maintaining, repairing, and improving all infrastructure, equipment, and grounds owned and
operated by The Landings Association. The Department consists of the
following five program areas: Contract Administration, Facilities,
Construction, Environmental, and
Fleet. Each program area fulfills a
specific role to support the strategic
objectives of the Department to ensure the Association’s services and facilities provide an aestheticallypleasing, secure lifestyle for residents.
The Association uses a Capital
Asset Management Plan, which captures all assets over $1,000 owned by
the Association, to organize and
manage the short- and long-term
capital replacement and repair reserve funds. The Plan assets are evaluated and updated annually for
useful life, remaining life, and current year cost. Once evaluated to ensure that the asset replacement or
repair is absolutely necessary, these
items are included and funded
within the Capital Reserve account.

2010
highlighTs
sign Painting Program

16

The Landings Association continued the annual preventive
maintenance program of refurbishing and repainting 1/3 of the
community’s signs and mailbox
posts. This program extends the
useful life of these assets and ensures a standard level of quality
and appearance throughout the
community. Mailboxes requiring
repair are refurbished as necessary.
This work is completed by a combination of in-house staff and con-

tracted means. In 2010, 1,477
units were painted, and mailboxes
requiring repair were refurbished
as warranted. This project is
funded annually through the Association’s operating budget.

replacements. The new systems all
include new mainlines, lateral
lines, clock, valves, wiring, and
sprinkler heads.

cart Path/Trail
resurfacing

As part of our Capital Asset
Management Plan, staff, engineers, and the Public Works Committee completed the annual road
inspections for the 2010 street
resurfacing and repair program.
This involves evaluation of pavement conditions and providing
subsequent
recommendations
based on the structural sufficiency
of the pavement. Full resurfacing
is scheduled for streets rated in
poor condition. This annual program mills 1-1.5 inches of asphalt
from the existing street surfaces,
repairs failures where necessary,
and installs a new driving surface.
A portion of the street resurfacing
reserve budget is allocated to a preventive repair and patching program component as a relatively
lower-cost effort to prevent further
deterioration. Streets that have
root intrusions or potholes, but
otherwise are in good condition,
receive patches to prevent them
from slipping into deterioration.
In 2010, the program replaced
213,196 SY of road surface and
246 LF of curb necessary to meet
our quality standards.

As part of our Capital Asset
Management Plan, all common
property cart paths were evaluated
and rated for condition quality. In
order to make the best use of the
funds scheduled for 2010, paving
of the paths with the lowest condition rating was performed. In
2010, the program included the
replacement of 16,600 LF of paths
at a unit price of $23/LF, an increase of $0.25/LF from the 2009
program.

lagoon structure
replacement
For the past few years, staff had
been monitoring the condition
and effectiveness of the water control structure located at lagoon #1
off of Windlass Court. In the 2009
evaluation of all water control
structures, it was determined that
this structure was beyond repair,
with replacement being necessary.
In 2010, the structure was fully replaced, and the bank located along
the marsh was refurbished with an
oyster shell revetment as required
by Georgia Department of Natural Resources.

irrigation replacement
In 2010, the Marshwood Gate,
Tidewater Square, and Oakridge
Gate irrigation systems were replaced. The Oakridge Gate irrigation system originally was
scheduled for replacement in
2011. However, as a result of aggressive, competitive bidding, the
Association was able to complete
all three systems at a reduced cost
from the reserve allocated for these

street resurfacing
and repair Program

deer creek and
deer creek north
automatic gates
Due to the age and obsolescence
of the automatic gate equipment
at the Deer Creek Village and
Deer Creek North Gates, the
equipment at these locations was
replaced as scheduled in 2010.
The replacement of these automatic gate systems will provide improved efficiency.
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deer creek Bridge
re-decking
The scheduled re-decking of the
Deer Creek Bridge in 2010 was
necessitated following years of
weathering and heavy pedestrian
and cart traffic. This bridge, located off of Islanders’ Retreat, is
the Association’s longest cart
bridge at 12,260 LF and provides
access to the Deer Creek Club.
The re-decking of this asset was
budgeted at $90K. As a result of
aggressive, competitive bidding,
the project was successfully completed for $56K.

administration
Building roof
The roof on the Administration
building originally was built in
1992, with a 15-year warranty
shingle. Staff had been monitoring
the roof annually and determined
that this asset no longer could be
extended and, therefore, was replaced in 2010. The newly-installed roof was replaced with a
30-year architectural shingle that
allowed us to extend the replacement schedule in future years.

Ford F-650 dump Truck
refurbishment
The Ford F-650 dump truck
originally was scheduled for replacement in 2010. However, as a
result of our annual inspection of
the vehicle, it was determined that
a full replacement was not necessary and refurbishment would extend the useful life of the vehicle
by an additional two years. Work
completed on the vehicle included
the refurbishment of the bed floor
lining and sides to reinforce the
structure, and the installation of
an electric motor for the canopy.

emergency generators
All seven automatic gate systems
within the community operate on
electrical power. In 2010, emergency generators were installed at
the Deer Creek North and
Marshview Landing gates. All automatic gate entry systems now are
connected through natural-gas
powered emergency generators
that will provide continuing service during power outages.

landings harbor sign
Upon inspection of all entrance
signs in 2009, it was determined
that the entrance sign at Landings
Harbor was deteriorated beyond
repair and required replacement.
In 2010, staff installed a new entrance sign that is consistent with
the Association’s Signage Policy
and enhanced the planting area in
this location.

marine service center
overhead Bay doors
The two overhead bay doors located at the Marine Service Center at Landings Harbor Marina
had surpassed their asset life and
were replaced in 2010, as continued repair costs of this asset had
increased drastically over the past
year.

landings harbor
Bulkhead extension
and Forklift Purchase
In 2010, one of the two boat elevators at Landings Harbor was removed. In lieu of the boat elevator,
the tarmac bulkhead was extended
to allow sufficient space for the
new negative forklift to lower
boats directly into the water. The
new forklift will increase efficiency
of boat movements by eliminating
a second step in the process, while
also decreasing the potential for
boat damage. This action also
eliminated the future replacement
cost of an elevator.

delegal structure
replacement
The Delegal Structure, one of
the most visited amenities of The
Landings Association and a landmark location within the community, was replaced in 2010. Work
included the full replacement of
the substructure, decking, and
tower, and creation of a screened
porch. In addition, the fixed pier
leading from the Sunset Pavilion
to the tower was re-decked utilizing the $34K available funds from
the Deer Creek Bridge Re-decking.

delegal electrical Panels
The electrical panels located at
the Delegal Marina exhibited signs
of deterioration and corrosion.
These panels were scheduled for
replacement in 2010, with replacement conducted in conjunction with the electrical work
associated with the Delegal Structure.

2010
committee:
dog Park
Tom Gustinella, Chair
Flip Boggs
Steve Gordon
Ed Heiser
Al Ikenberg
Ken Pearl
Kathi Pelliccione
Deborah Strock
Public Works
Committee Liaison:
Blake Caldwell
Staﬀ Liaison:
Daniel Rock

recycling center
In an effort to keep the facility
cost neutral while increasing efficiency, staff modified the plastics
program from bailing to compacting. The resulting change reduced
fuel and dump fees, therefore reducing the overall cost. In 2011,
staff will continue to look for ways
to improve the cost effectiveness,
performance, and customer satisfaction of the facility.

continued on Page 18
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ublic Works - continued from page 17

street sweeping
In an effort to improve service
and efficiency of the street sweeping program, the portion that was
outsourced during peak leaf season
was thoroughly analyzed and subsequently brought back in house.
This change, along with reduced
maintenance costs and other savings, resulted in a decrease in overall expenses, while continuing to
maintain a 10-day sweeping cycle
of all Landings Association-owned
streets. This change has received a
positive response from the community.

2011
eXPecTaTions
In an effort to maintain and improve Association-owned assets
while reducing operation costs, we
have evaluated the following projects as necessary for 2011. All projects will be vetted by staff and
Association Committees to ensure
that the replacement and repairs
will meet or exceed our quality
standards and are evaluated to ensure that each replacement will
provide the Association with the
greatest, long-term cost benefit.

sign Painting
Program
The Association will continue to
refurbish and repaint 1/3 of the
community’s signs and mailbox
posts annually. In 2011, this work
will be conducted in Phases III
and IV through in-house staff and
contracted means and will be
funded through the Association’s
operating budget.

18

oakridge and deer creek
gate awnings

lagoon structure
replacement

The gate awnings at the
Oakridge and Deer Creek gatehouses are seven-years-old, are
showing major signs of deterioration, and have reached their asset
life. In 2011, these awnings will be
replaced with an extended hip roof
to complement the copper roofs
that were installed in 2008. This
project will be funded through the
Capital Reserve Fund.

A large majority of lagoon structures within our community are
rapidly approaching or have
reached the end of their asset life,
requiring extensive maintenance
for continued long-term service.
As a result of the 2010 inspections,
it was determined that lagoon
structures numbered 2, 68, 87,
and 115 are in need of replacement and/or refurbishment. This
work will be conducted through a
combination of contracted means
and in-house staff and will be
funded through the Capital Reserves.

marshwood
monument sign
The large Landings monument
sign, located on McWhorter Road
at the Marshwood gate, originally
was installed in 1992 and is showing major signs of deterioration.
While repairs and repainting have
been performed over the years, the
sign has reached its asset life and
will be replaced in 2011.

administration Building
renovation
The Association’s Administration
building was built in 1992. Over
the past 19 years, the Association
has adapted the building to meet
the needs of the community. The
building’s carpet and conference
room divider require replacement,
and the areas with wallpaper will
be replaced with paint.

sunset Pavilion Parking
lot street lights
The seven wooden street poles
and lights located at the Sunset
Pavilion parking lot are scheduled
for replacement in 2011 as they
have reached their asset life and are
beyond repair.

cart Path/Trail
resurfacing
In 2011, the Public Works Committee and staff will select those
paths that are most deteriorated
and which meet Association standards for replacement. The program goal is to eliminate any
damaged, raised, or buckled sections, largely a result of root intrusions. Based on the 2010
evaluations, a minimal amount of
cart path replacement is required
in 2011.

street resurfacing and
repair Program
Upon completion of the 2011
road paving evaluations/inspections, the Public Works Committee and staff will select those roads
and curbing that are most deteriorated and which meet Association
standards for repair or replacement. This annual project is
funded through the Capital Reserve.

road striping
The Landings Association restripes roads bi-annually to replenish faded or worn pavement
striping, stop bars, and crosswalks.
In 2011, in-house staff will refurbish all of the stop bars and crosswalks. All other striping will be
completed through contracted
means. This project is funded biannually through the Association’s
operating budget.

delegal replacement
and repairs
Staff currently is awaiting recommendations from our engineers
in reference to both Landings Harbor and Delegal Creek Marinas. In
2011, the Association has budgeted for the replacement of the
fixed walkway and repairs to the
floating docks at Delegal Creek
Marina. However, these items are
contingent upon the engineers’
recommendations.

sunset Pavilion
Fire alarm system
Currently, there is not a comprehensive fire alarm system in
place at the Sunset Pavilion. A
new, all-encompassing system will
be installed in 2011.

AR guts 2010 REVISED.qxd:Layout 1

2/8/11

3:24 PM

Page 19

F
landscape contract
The Association’s common property landscape contract began in
2009 and expires in early 2012.
The landscape contract includes
mowing and trimming cycles, annual over-seeding, bed edging, and
maintenance of under-story plantings, weed control, plant installation, and irrigation on Association
property. Staff has begun evaluating and revising the terms of the
current contract in preparation for
the process of obtaining a new
three-year contract for 2012-2014.
As the largest single operating
budget line item, the landscape
contract cost must be determined
early in the 2012-2014 Assessment
planning process. The landscape
contract is funded through the Association’s operating budget.

reserve study
In 2011, staff will contract with
an engineering firm to conduct a
reserve study of all Association
storm drains, bridges, lagoons,
dikes, and structures. The reserve
study will include life expectancy
and updated replacement costs of
the assets. This study will evaluate
all major assets and will test the assumptions used within our Capital
Asset Management Plan to identify potential cost savings or improvements. The last formal
reserve study conducted by engineers was completed in 2000.

Photo by Doug Herrick©
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tatistics

Association Buildings Maintained
Vehicles Maintained
Mailboxes and Signs Painted
Mailboxes and Signs Repaired
Miles of Cart Paths/Trails Repaved
Miles of Road Repaved
Acres of Common Property Maintained
Storm Drains Repaired
Cubic Yards of Debris Removed From Roads
Number of Streetlights Repaired
Number of Private Trees Approved for Removal
Number of Common Area Trees Removed
Miles of Road Shoulder Pruned for Visibility
Number of Deer Removed
Number of Hogs Removed

2010

2009

14
21
1,477
788
3.1
2
690
14
6,612
52
1,272
188
82.2
129
17

14
21
1,464
699
2.6
3.8
690
10
7,135
105
1,199
226
84.9
172
29
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ecurity

daVid Willsie
Chief of Security
2010
committee:
securiTY suPPorT
Charles Scobee, Chair
Jim Murray
Louise Walker
SCMPD Precinct 4 Liaison:
Sgt. George Gundich
Staﬀ Liaison:
David Willsie

security
mission statement

emergency service
assistance

The mission of the Security Department is to promote a secure
lifestyle through community service
in four major operational areas: Access Control, Emergency Service Assistance, Property Checks, and
Covenant Compliance. The Department’s goals are to ensure the safety
and security of the residents, their
guests, and employees; maintain the
privacy of the community; and deter
illegal activity. The Chief of Security
is responsible for emergency planning, law enforcement liaison, and
general Security operations. The Department is organized similar to a
police department, with three shift
supervisors and three assistants (one
for each shift). The Security supervisors report to the Chief of Security,
who in turn reports to the General
Manager.

Security patrols respond to all
medical calls, fire alarms, and burglar alarms in the community. Patrols provide escort for police, fire,
and medical units during emergency situations. In 2010, patrols
responded to 458 medical calls, 72
fire alarms, and 210 burglar
alarms.

2010
highlighTs
access control
A variety of automated and manual systems are used to process vehicle entries using any of our seven
gates. A one-day high of 10,394
vehicles used the automated vehicle entry system in 2010. The
Main Gatehouse is the 24/7 hub
of our automated systems, including our video camera surveillance.
It also is our dispatch center for all
calls and is augmented by resident
volunteers who assist in processing
guest passes. The Marshwood
Gatehouse is staffed 12 hours
daily, Monday through Saturday,
while the Deer Creek, Marshview,
McWhorter, Moon River, and
Oakridge gates are fully automated. In 2010, a total of 105,318
guest passes were processed for residents.

20

training on customer service and
effective report writing. The Chief
of Security successfully completed
the CERT Instructor’s course that
was sponsored by the Chatham
Emergency Management Agency.

mobile Workforce
management

Security vehicle and golf cart patrols serve as a deterrent to illegal
activity and help monitor traffic
flow. The patrol officers also conduct checks of common property
facilities and amenities on a daily
basis. This work is performed by
the same staff that responds to
emergency situations. In 2010,
our patrols discovered 329 insecure properties.

Installed during the latter part of
2010, this system provides realtime location and tracking of Security vehicles. This has improved
the efficiency of dispatching and
routing of Security vehicles and
staff. This system, coupled with
the addition of two hybrid vehicles, resulted in an annual fuel reduction of 1,400 gallons.
Additionally, the system will store
90 days of tracking history and vehicle speed to analyze patrol efficiency, aid in the investigation of
accidents or complaints, and serve
as a training tool.

covenant compliance

Twitter

Patrol and Property
checks

This area is staffed by one compliance officer, who verifies and resolves all reports of Covenant
violations. These reports may be
generated by residents, staff, or Security Officers. In 2010, there was
an average of almost 25 valid complaints received each month, for a
total of 291. Of those, 182 were
reported by Security Officers and
109 by residents. The majority of
violations were related to yard
maintenance and trash. Sixty percent of the violations were resolved
within two weeks of initial contact
with the property owner.

staff development
All Security Officers completed
a comprehensive online training
program that included Basic Security Officer Training, Community
Emergency Response Training
(CERT), and Fire Safety. In addition to individual training, all officers completed department level

In 2010, we began using Twitter
technology to provide text alerts
that residents can receive via email
or a via text message on a cellular
phone. This service enables us to
provide timely notifications of
bridge disruptions and other
emergency alerts. We encourage
everyone with a cell phone to sign
up for this service. Subscription
details are available on The Landings
Association’s
website
(www.landings.org).

Vehicle Barrier arms
at deer creek gates
All sliding security gates and resident automatic gates were refurbished. A stoplight was added to
the Lake Street entrance, and the
timing was adjusted on both exit
lanes to improve traffic flow.

AR guts 2010 REVISED.qxd:Layout 1

2/8/11

3:24 PM

Page 21

F
2011
eXPecTaTions
Video monitoring
extension
The video monitoring system
will be extended to provide video
coverage to the north Storage Yard
Facility and Recycling Center.
Originally, the project called for
four standard security cameras. Instead, two high resolution
megapixel cameras will be installed. They provide a much more
detailed image and wider field of
view than our current cameras. In
addition, we will upgrade the existing network video recorder and
install new software to accommodate the new high resolution cameras.

hurricane evacuation
exercise
In order to validate our emergency plans, we will be working
with the Chatham Emergency
Management Agency (CEMA) to
plan and execute a tabletop hurricane evacuation exercise targeted
for June of this year. An invitation
will be extended to all members of
the Skidaway Island Emergency
Action Team, which is comprised
of on-island organizations.

Bicycle Patrol
A Security bicycle patrol will be
established and utilized on weekends in an effort to prevent incidents of vandalism and theft in the
community.

staff development
The entire department will participate in quarterly webinars on
security-related topics. The use of
webinars will provide us with more
flexibility in accommodating shift
workers and reduce overall training
costs. In addition, all officers will
be certified in First Aid, Automated External Defibrillator, and
Adult, Child, and Infant CPR.

Photo by Doug Herrick©
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Guest Pass Requests Processed
Active Barcodes
High Day’s Barcode Entries
Incident Reports Filed
Assistance Requests
EMS Support Runs
Insecure Property Reports
Covenant Violations*
Alarm Responses (Fire/Burglar)
*Covenant Violations by Type:
Yard
Trash
Trailers, RVs, Boats
House/Structures
Signage
Trees
Animal/Pets
Parking Violations
Misc. Items

2010

2009

105,394
22,000
10,394
4,399
464
458
329
291
282

85,594
21,095
9,836
4,058
456
439
624
426
234

76
41
40
34
19
19
17
17
28

122
128
40
23
46
27
19
21
n/a
21
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eneral manager’s message - continued from page 4

Process improvement
The scheduled 2010 replacement of one of the two boat elevators at Landings Harbor presented
an opportunity for process improvement and reduced long-term
costs. The existing operation included two forklifts to move boats
from their racks and two elevators
to lower boats into the water. A
full evaluation of boat movements
was conducted, including benchmarking with other area marinas.
As a result of the evaluation, we
opted to keep one elevator and
forklift, and eliminate the second
elevator and forklift, replacing
them with a new negative lift, capable of moving boats from their
racks as well as placing them directly into the water. While this
change required extending the
bulkhead to accommodate the
negative lift and accelerating a
forklift replacement from 2012 to
2010, a net reduction in future
capital replacement requirements
of at least $125,000 was realized.
This new forklift also requires less
staff to handle each boat movement and eliminates a transfer step
between the boat and water, thus
reducing potential for accidents.

delegal structure
reopening
On July 23, 2010 the Association hosted the Grand Opening of
the re-built Delegal Tower and
fixed pier. After having the facility
closed for slightly more than a
year, well over 1,000 residents
gathered on the waterfront to celebrate. Due to normal aging, as
well as damage caused by storms,
it was necessary to replace much of
the pilings and decks, as well as the
tower and Captain’s Lounge structure. As part of this project, the
22

Captain’s Lounge facility was replaced with an open-air observatory and a screened-in porch
below. The Bethesda Barn
Builders designed, built, and installed seating for the second floor.
The project originally was
planned in two phases, with completion of the tower and structures, as well as a portion of the
dock, to occur in late 2010. The
second phase, replacement of the
northern section of fixed pier, was
planned to occur at the beginning
of 2011. However, in June 2009,
project engineers recommended
the closure of the tower and southern section of walkway as a result
of significant horizontal movement. The phase one work was accelerated as a result and completed
ahead of the original schedule, at
a cost of $821,100.
The north entry and walkway
(phase two) currently remains
closed due to safety concerns from
shifting of the structure. A variety
of options were explored, and bids
were solicited in November and
December to determine costs associated with all options. Lack of
competition for the work (one bid
was received) requires that the
project be bid out again in the first
quarter of 2011.

marinas review
The Board of Directors authorized a contract with Applied Technology & Management for marine
consulting engineering work, including a condition assessment of
the marine structures, as well as
competitive positioning, financial,
and operations assessments for
both the Delegal Creek and Landings Harbor marinas. The results
and recommendations of this evaluation will be received during the

first quarter of 2011, and will further inform decision making on
both short- and long-term needs
and associated financial implications, including the fixed pier
project.

home expo and
renovation Tour
During November 2010, The
Landings Home Expo and Renovation Tour was a resounding success. Organized and executed by
John Kinnaman, Jan Wright, and
members of the Association’s Development Committee, the goal of
the event was to raise awareness
and inspire property owners to
consider renovation projects to increase property and resale values.
Hundreds of residents toured 10
renovated Landings homes and
two homes at The Marshes. The
Expo, held at Plantation, featured
25 exhibitors, who answered questions and assisted property owners
in exploring project possibilities.

community survey
The Association periodically
conducts community surveys to
assess how well we are meeting
property owner expectations and
to identify opportunities for improvement. Our current practice is
to conduct a full, formal random
sample satisfaction survey through
a survey consulting firm every
two-to-three years. Our last such
survey was conducted at the end of
2009. Given the importance of
your continuing feedback, we used
our Email Bulletin subscriber listt
to obtain feedback on six, keyy
baseline measures of satisfaction as
a “pulse” check during the offyear. A total of 876 property owners responded to this short survey,
with the following results:

• 93.9% agree that “The services
provided by The Landings Association are a good value for the assessment I pay.”
• 96.2% are satisfied with Overall
Safety and Security Operations.
• 96.6% are satisfied with Overall
Appearance of Common Property
• 96.0% are satisfied with TLA’s
Overall Customer Service
• 96.7% are satisfied with Internal
Communication (i.e. how you
find out about things at The Landings).
• 90.2% are satisfied with The
Landings’ Marinas.
These results are consistent with
the 2009 survey results, and we
greatly appreciate your feedback.

Thanks!
As your General Manager, I am
fortunate and proud to work with
informed elected Directors, dedicated Association employees, and
involved and engaged property
owners as we continually strive to
improve our community. As we
begin 2011, I thank our property
owners for the valuable support
again provided to the Association
during the year, whether it is volunteerism on a standing committee, responding to surveys,
participating on a special project,
or attending a Board meeting just
because you are interested in
what’s going on. It makes a world
of difference. Thank you!

shar
a i hal
ar
a deman
al
a
an
shari
haldeman
General Manager/
Chief Operating Officer
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Bill Houghton
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he landings company

The Landings Company is the
marketing and real estate arm of
The Landings Association. Its Mission is to support and enhance property values at The Landings. To this
end, the Company conducts national, regional, and local marketing programs on behalf of the entire
community and maintains a Discovery Center for prospective purchasers. The Company also manages
proprietary real estate brokerage and
property rental operations which facilitate an efficient and professional
process for sales and purchases and,
even more importantly, generate the
net cash flows that are the sole current source of funding for community marketing.

Background
The Company is the successor
organization to the marketing and
sales operations of the developer of
The Landings (Branigar) and has
been in operation since 1998. It is
a taxable corporation, wholly
owned by the Association, and
managed by a separate Board of
Directors. Day-to-day operations
are conducted by a small staff and
a number of independent, licensed
Realtors. The Company cooperates with both the Association and
the independent Landings Club to
ensure that prospective purchasers
appreciate the community’s amenities, programs, and lifestyle.
Extensive marketing of The
Landings is essential in light of the
large size, private location, and
non-resort character of our community. The Landings consists of
more than 4,400 privately-owned
properties with a combined value
of $2 billion. Historically, turnover
has averaged about seven percent,
meaning that 300 properties have
to be sold annually to balance supply and demand and support values. More than half of these
purchasers typically come from
outside our local area and have to
be attracted to our community by

a variety of marketing initiatives.
With an increasing number of
competing communities struggling and many potential purchasers awaiting better economic
conditions, competition remains
intense for the remaining pool of
prospective buyers.
The Landings is a vibrant community in an absolutely beautiful
natural setting, with first class
amenities, a variety of housing options, and an established track
record of sound financial and operational management. Savannah
increasingly is being recognized as
one of the country’s most enchanting cities, offering cultural,
medical, dining, shopping, and
tourism opportunities. Significant
professional marketing efforts remain necessary, however, to make
a sufficient number of prospective
purchasers aware of our lifestyle
advantages and to convert that interest into actual transactions.

2010
highlighTs
management
The Company started 2010 with
former Board Chairman Larry
Wills continuing as Interim Chief
Operating Officer while the search
for a new President was underway.
The search was successfully concluded in the spring with the engagement of Bill Houghton. Bill
has undergraduate and graduate
degrees in marketing; a wealth of
community marketing experience,
including as Chief Marketing Officer of the Reynolds Companies;
and is a licensed Realtor. Bill already has made substantial improvements in the scope, quality,
and effectiveness of our community marketing programs.

marketing
expenditures
The Company has spent an average of $1.1 million annually
since inception on marketing the
Landings community. Expenditures in 2009 and 2010 were reduced to less than one-half of this
historical level as the cash generated by proprietary real estate activities declined due to overall
market conditions. A significant
portion of the 2009-2010 marketing expenditures was also funded
by a combination of cash reserves
accumulated over the strong market of the mid-2000s, refunds of
past federal income taxes arising
from temporarily liberalized carryback provisions, and reductions in
Company overhead costs. These
sources are not sustainable, however, and future marketing expenditures will depend even more
heavily on proprietary real estate
profits, unless other funding
sources are forthcoming.

community
marketing Programs
Successful marketing of The
Landings requires clear and compelling messaging and coordinated
initiatives across a variety of areas
to build awareness among key target demographics and then
achieve fulfillment and engagement. Marketing programs in
2010 included fresh messages and
visuals; an updated website
(www.thelandings.com)
along
with search engine optimization
and a pay-per-click campaign with
Google; attendance at six Live
South Real Estate Shows; about 20
placements in print media reaching four million households; direct
mail to almost 100,000 households; various advertorials and
public relations efforts; an all-new
fulfillment brochure; and our Discovery Tour packages. Tangible results attributable to these efforts
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F
included increased website traffic,
an increase in overnight sales
guests, and a number of actual
transactions.

53 percent of the buyers, and 59
percent of the closings were Company listings.

collaboration with
The landings club

2011
eXPecTaTions

The Landings Club is a private
club and is a totally separate entity
from the Association and the
Company. The amenities and
lifestyle the Club offers are key
drawing cards for many prospective buyers, and thus are critical for
all Landings property values,
whether the current owners are
Club members or not. The Company and the Club significantly
expanded their collaborative and
synergistic efforts in 2010, recognizing the limitations the Club has
as a result of its Private Club and
tax exempt status. Club initiatives
that increase awareness of the
Landings community include regional and national golf and tennis events, a lifestyle video for the
respective websites and a DVD,
and the promotional efforts of a
public relations consultant. The
onsite experience is enhanced by
improved access to Club amenities
and a revitalized Ambassador Program.

real estate
market conditions
2010 turned out to be a somewhat better year than originally expected, including relatively
favorable fourth quarter sales and
closings. The overall U.S. housing
market, however, continues to face
many challenges, with few expectations beyond a very slow recovery at best for the next few years.

marketing
expenditures

community
marketing Programs

The Company is planning for
national, regional, and local intercept marketing expenditures of
$600,000 for 2011. Of this total,
about $400,000 is expected to be
funded by net cash flows from
2011 proprietary real estate operations, with the balance from a
drawdown of cash reserves. As in
past years, the Company may adjust its expenditures based on results during the course of the year
and other factors.

Marketing efforts largely will
continue to build on the successful initiatives of 2010. Cost effectiveness remains key. A new video
will be added to the website along
with enhanced search engine optimization and Google pay-perclick. Print media will favor
impact over general circulation.
The Landings will be represented
at 12 Live South Shows. The display booth has been updated, and
the previous booth will be installed
at a prominent location at the Savannah/Hilton Head Airport.

real estate
Brokerage operations
Real estate activity at The Landings in 2010 generally improved
from the historically low levels of
2009, while the higher-priced
market segment remained relatively dormant. Community-wide,
there were 137 home and five lot
closings, comparable to the levels
of 2008, and 36 percent above
2009. The rest of Chatham
County experienced a three percent decrease in home sales. The
average Landings home price was
$466,000, seven percent below
2009 and 20 percent below 2008.
In its proprietary real estate operations, the Company represented

S

tatistics

Marketing Expenditures*
Overnight Sales Guests *
Closings (Number)**
Sales Value**
Average House Price**
* Landings Company only

2010
$530K
255
142
$64M
$466K

2009
$442K
226
104
$50M
$499K

** All Landings (from MLS)
25
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inancial report

audiTed Financial sTaTemenTs
and oTher inFormaTion
decemBer 31, 2010 and 2009
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reasurer’s report

The audited consolidated financial statements of The Landings Association, Inc. and its whollyowned subsidiary, The Landings Company, together with the unqualified opinion of Holland, Henry
& Bromley, LLP, Certified Public Accountants, are presented on the following pages.
The consolidated financial condition of The Landings Association and its subsidiary, The Landings
Company, continues to be financially sound. Even with decreases in non-assessment revenues coupled with the slowdown in the real estate market, and general economic decline, consolidated revenues of $12,668,829 exceeded consolidated expenses of $11,547,822, resulting in a net increase in
members’ equity of $454,967. At December 31, 2010, members’ equity totaled $11,405,559, of
which $4,957,032 was set aside to fund future infrastructure repairs and replacements. The operations of the Marinas, which are included in the operating results of the Association, had a decrease
in revenues from prior years due to the economic decline. In 2010, the Marinas’ expenses exceeded
revenues by $55,515.
With the significant downturn in the national real estate industry, The Landings Company incurred
a loss after tax benefits of $109,554, as expenditures for community marketing exceeded the net profits from its real estate operations. The Company continues to undertake cost containment measures
and to pursue marketing initiatives consistent with future projections of the real estate market’s recovery and its financial position.
As in the past, each of the Association’s operating Department Managers, working in close conjunction with the General Manager and Finance Department, revised short- and long-term operating plans. A liaison from the Finance Committee worked with each Department Manager during
the preparation of the Long Range Financial Plan and the 2011 annual budget. These efforts indicate that the consolidated financial position of the Association will enable it to meet its financial obligations to the community and the challenges that lie ahead.
I have enjoyed serving as your Treasurer for the past year, and I thank each member of the Finance
and Audit Committee for their contributions during the year. On behalf of the Committee, I also
extend our appreciation to the staff of the Association’s Finance Department for their commitment
to the Association and their contributions.

jim mcinerney
Treasurer
e Landings Association Board of Directors
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holland, henrY & BromleY, llP
certified Public accountants
J. Richard Henry, CPA
Christopher H. Holland, CPA, CFP®
S. Stewart Bromley, CPA, CFP®
Ronnie A. Barnhill Jr., CPA
Shannon L. Brett, CPA, CFE

To e Board of Directors and Members
e Landings Association, Inc.
600 Landings Way South
Savannah, Georgia 31411
We have audited the accompanying consolidating balance sheets of e Landings Association, Inc. and its subsidiary, e
Landings Company, as of December 31, 2010, and the related consolidating statements of revenues and expenses and
changes in members’ equity and consolidating statements of cash flows for the year then ended. ese financial statements
are the responsibility of the Association’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. ose
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides
a reasonable basis for our opinion. e prior year summarized comparative information has been derived from the Association’s December 31, 2009 financial statements and, in our report dated February 3, 2010, we expressed an unqualified
opinion on those financial statements.
In our opinion, the 2010 financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the individual and
consolidated financial positions of e Landings Association, Inc. and subsidiary as of December 31, 2010, and the results
of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended, all in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. e
supplementary information on pages 43-46 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of
the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whole.
e supplementary information of future major repairs and replacements on pages 40-41 is not a required part of the basic
financial statements of e Landings Association, Inc. but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Holland, Henry & Bromley, LLP
February 2, 2011
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99,907
568,675

308,022
8,643
60,091
34,702
57,310

6,448,527
6,448,527
7,309,913

4,957,032
4,957,032
4,957,064

11,405,559
11,405,559
12,266,977

292,743

-

$

292,743

32

32

292,743

$

$

292,743

99,907
568,643

308,022
8,611
60,091
34,702
57,310

1,127,110
1,127,110
12,266,977

5,259,990

143,667
533,370
46,737
159,368
5,879,877

3,873,000

1,066,425
57,310
1,123,735

2

1

$

$

$

$

1,127,110
1,470,759

100
1,127,010

-

284,409
4 400
4,400
17,542
343,649

37,298

37,400
1,470,759

37,400

552,882

880,477

10,100

585,968
284,409
870,377

- Allowance for doubtful accounts was $32,000 and $5,700 as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
- Common Stock $1 par, 10,000 shares authorized, 100 shares issued and outstanding.

NOTE - The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements

Equity
Common stock 2
Retained earnings
Members' equity
Total Equity
TOTAL

Long-Term Liabilities
Long-term bank debt, net of current portion
Deferred tax liability
Total Long-Term Liabilities

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

(1,127,010)
(1,127,110)
(1,127,110) $

(100)

-

-

$

(1,127,110)
(1,127,110) $

(1,127,110)

-

-

Eliminations

1,127,010
10,278,549
11,405,559
12,610,626

292,743
292,743

345,320
8,643
60,091
34,702
341,719
4 400
4,400
117,449
912,324

37,400
37,400
12,610,626

5,812,872

3,873,000
143,667
543,470
46,737
159,368
6,760,354

1,652,393
341,719
1,994,112

Total

$

$

$

$

1,236,564
9,714,028
10,950,592
12,170,028

352,835
7,400
360,235

222,110
768
60,091
39,991
427,883
4 400
4,400
103,958
859,201

12,170,028

4,949,170

118,000
3,540,520
259,436
,
291,995
433,768
41,822
135,529
7,220,858

2,179,626
220,162
2,399,788

Total

December 31, 2009

3:24 PM

853,466
853,466
4,957,064

11,581

4,092,017

319,012

3,753,020

19,985

19,985

Total

The Landings
Company

December 31, 2010

2/8/11

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable & accrued expenses
Income taxes payable
Current portion of long-term liabilities
Deferred revenue
Escrow balances & deposits
Deferred tax liability
Accrued payroll & taxes withheld
Total Current Liabilities

1,127,110
(853,466)
273,644
7,309,913 $

Other Assets
Deferred tax asset
Investment in subsidiary
Interfund (payable) receivable
Total Other Assets
TOTAL
$

5,248,409

$

Property, Plant, & Equipment, net

119,980

1,046,440
57,310
1,103,750

Reserve Funds

143,667
214,358
46,737
159,368
1,787,860

$

Operating

Certificates of deposit
Investments, short-term
Investments,, short-term escrow
Income taxes receivable
Other accounts receivable, net 1
Inventories
Prepaid insurance & other
Total Current Assets

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash & cash equivalents
Cash & money market accounts
Cash held in escrow

The Landings Association, Inc.
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(109,554)
(109
554)
454,967

1,195,731
631,210
564,521

4,752,242
10,950,592
(293,470)
$ 4,957,032
4 957 032 $ 11,405,559
11 405 559

498,260

498,260

498,260

15,503
8,321,132
8
321 132

1,309,264
4,012,479
1,257,470
1,726,416

74,095
435,729
9,516,863

6
618,545
8,5 5
293,014
113,139
60,557

6,493,280
1,428,504

$

$

1 127 110
1,127,110

1,236,664

(109,554)

(74,724)
34,830
(109,554)

602,805
1,283,833
870,658
529,758
(45,550)
3 241 504
3,241,504

30,891
3,166,780

894,506

2,241,383

$

$

$

454,967

1,121,007
666,040
454,967

1,309,264
4,012,479
1,257,470
2,287,054
1,283,833
870,658
529,758
(30,047)
11 520 469
11,520,469

6,493,280
1,428,504
2,241,383
6
618,545
8,5 5
270,029
113,139
41,375
894,506
74,095
466,620
12,641,476

10,950,592
(1 127 110) $ 11,405,559
(1,127,110)
11 405 559

109,554
109
554
109,554

(42 167)
(42,167)

(42,167)

(42,167)

(19,182)

(22,985)

(1,236,664)

NOTE - The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

6,198,350
293,470
$ 6,448,527
6 448 527

(109,554)
(109
554)
(43,293)

Equity in losses of subsidiary

Equity, January 1
Transfer from (to) operating fund
Equity December 31
Equity,

697,471
631,210
66,261

Excess of revenues (expenses)
Depreciation
Net revenues (expenses)

(736)
940,827
940
827

$

209,833

846,107
636,274
209,833

1,344,773
3,946,597
1,315,615
2,336,691
872,945
784,903
442,017
(257,501)
10 786 040
10,786,040

6,175,175
1,569,166
1,529,296
6
646,072
6,0
244,194
61,999
99,455
801,687
63,114
441,989
11,632,147

10,740,759
$ 10,950,592
10 950 592

$

Total
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16,239
7,380,305
7
380 305

941,563

1,439,087

74,095
435,729
8,077,776
1,309,264
3,070,916
1,257,470
1,726,416

6,926

$ 1,432,161

618,545
6 8,5 5
293,014
113,139
53,631

$ 5,061,119
1,428,504

Total

Year ended
Dec. 31, 2009

2/8/11

Expenses
Community services
Public works
Marina
General & administrative
Commissions
Costs related to rentals
Sales & marketing
Income taxes (benefits)
Total

Revenues
Assessments
Marina
Commissions
Vehicle registration
g
Service agreements
Architectural review fees
Interest earned
Rental fees
Telecommunications leases
Other
Total

Year ended December 31, 2010
The Landings Association, Inc.
The Landings
g
Reserve
Company
Eliminations
Operating
Funds
Total
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consolidating statements of revenues
and expenses and changes in members’ equity

(430,640)
1 534 390
1,534,390
1,103,750

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents,
equivalents January 1

Cash and cash equivalents, December 31

19,985

-

19,985

88,498
(532,855)
(444,357)

1,123,735

1 534 390
1,534,390

(410,655)

(60,091)

(60,091)
-

(1,526,684)
3,799,956
(3,755,000)
(1,481,728)

NOTE - The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the year for interest by The Landings Association, Inc.
Cash received during the year for taxes by The Landings Association
Association, Inc
Inc.
Cash received during the year for taxes by The Landings Company

(60,091)
(88,498)
532,855
384,266

(1,728,015)
259,436
(1,980)
(1,470,559)

201,331
3,540,520
(3,753,020)
(11,169)

206,188
(
)
(156,078)
9,079
(5,289)
7,875
1,131,164

206,188
(
)
(156,078)
9,079
(5,289)
8,611
22,013
655,653

(23,839)

454,967

(23,839)

$

$

109,554
631,210
26,293
5,628
(129,509)
(4,915)

(736)
(22,013)
475,511

498,260

109,554
631,210
26,293
5,628
(129,509)
(4,915)

$

(43
(43,293)
293) $

Total

$

$

870,377

865 398
865,398

4,979

-

(3,060)

(3,060)

8,039

43,500
26,414
4,413

(44,800)
(82,978)

142,700
(6,486)

34,830

$

-

-

-

-

(109,554)

109,554

Eliminations

(109
(109,554)
4) $

The Landings
Company

$

$

$

6,942
151,339

1,994,112

2 399 788
2,399,788

(405,676)

(60,091)
(60,091)

(1,529,744)
3,799,956
(3,755,000)
(1,484,788)

206,188
((112,578))
26,414
13,492
(5,289)
7,875
1,139,203

666,040
26,293
148,328
(135,995)
(4,915)
(44,800)
(106,817)

454,967

Total

$

$

$

19,813
1 240
1,240
155,771

2,399,588

2 485 274
2,485,274

(85,686)

(586,990)
(586,990)

(588,392)
277,907
(310,485)

(215,353)
((36,467))
14,667
20,460
(146,127)
(41,907)
811,789

636,274
(23,707)
(75,886)
163,357
11,015
14,000
(10,879)

502,342

Total
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CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayments under long-term bank agreements
Repayments under long-term agreements
Borrowings (lendings) under long-term agreements
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities

$

$

Reserve
Funds

Year ended
Dec. 31, 2009

2/8/11

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures
Proceeds from sale of short-term investments
Purchase of certificates of deposit
Net cash used by investing activities

Adjustments to reconcile excess of revenues
(under) over expenses to net cash provided (used)
by operating activities:
Equity in losses of subsidiary
Depreciation
Provision for doubtful accounts
Decrease (increase) in income taxes receivable
(Increase) decrease in other receivables
(Increase) decrease in inventories
Change in deferred tax items
Increase in prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable &
accrued expenses
(Decrease) increase in escrow balances & deposits
Increase in deposits
Increase in accrued payroll & taxes withheld
Decrease in deferred revenues
Increase (decrease) in income taxes payable
Cash transfer to other funds
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
E
Excess
off revenues (under)
(
) over expenses

Operating

The Landings Association, Inc.

Year ended
December 31, 2010
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notes to Financial statements

noTe 1 - organizaTion
e Landings Association, Inc. (“Association”) is a homeowners’ association, organized as a not-for-profit corporation in the State of Georgia. Its members are property owners of e Landings on Skidaway Island, a private residential community comprised of 4,596 acres and
4,422 lots, located in Chatham County, Georgia. e Association owns, operates, and maintains the common properties, facilities, and the
marinas, and it provides security services in the form of access control within the community.
e Association is the sole shareholder of e Landings Company (“Company”). e Company is responsible for the marketing and real estate operations previously provided by the property developer, e Branigar Organization. In accordance with the bylaws of the Company,
the transfer of Company stock is restricted solely to the Association, which is to remain the sole shareholder. e majority of the Company’s
expenditures relate to promoting e Landings’ real estate properties on a national basis, sales of homes and lots, and rentals of owners’
homes.

noTe 2 - signiFicanT accounTing Policies
Financial accounting standards Board (FasB) codification - In June 2009, the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (Codification) was issued to become the source of authoritative U.S. generally accepted accounting principles to be applied by non-governmental entities and suspended all then-existing accounting and reporting standards. All other non-grandfathered accounting literature not included
in the Codification became unauthoritative. e Codification was eﬀective for financial statements issued for interim and annual periods ending after September 15, 2009. e adoption of the Codification did not impact the financial statements of the Association or the Company.
method of consolidation - e accompanying consolidating financial statements include the accounts of the Association and the Company. Intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation. e Association provides security checks and visitor/guest services to the Company. is is the only intercompany transaction.
accounting method - Both the Association’s and the Company’s financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, revenues are recognized when earned, rather than when received, and expenses are recognized when incurred, rather
than when paid. Further, the Association uses fund accounting, which requires that funds designated for future significant repairs and replacements (the Capital Reserve Fund and the Road/Cart Path Reserve Fund) and the funds received for designated purposes other than general operations (such as the Annexation Fund) be classified separately for accounting and financial reporting purposes. Events subsequent to
December 31, 2010 which may have an impact on these financial statements have been considered through February 2, 2011.
cash & cash equivalents - Cash equivalents represent highly-liquid investments with maturities of three months or less at the date of purchase.
segregated cash Within the operating Fund - In accordance with the Architectural Guidelines and Review Procedures, the Association
holds monies in escrow for owners and builders during the construction phase of new houses and major renovations.
segregated cash Within e landings company - e Company has escrow accounts established to hold the monies received as down
payments on sales contracts and security deposits of members’ houses rented through the Company. Eﬀective June 30, 2000, transfer fees
collected were recorded as deferred revenue and maintained in a restricted cash account. In December 2003, a court order released from restriction all of this deferred revenue. During 2009, the final $50,000 in transfer fee deferred revenue was recognized as income, and the related cash was released from restriction.
assessments - Members’ assessments for the Association for operating purposes are required to be approved by a vote of the members no
more frequently than every three years. e assessment rate for each lot in 2010 was $1,460, and in 2009 was $1,400, which includes general purpose and reserve assessments. Disbursements from the Operating Fund generally are at the discretion of the General Manager within
the Board-approved budget. Disbursements from the reserve funds may be made only for their designated purposes.
marina revenue - e Marina operates through an enterprise fund where revenues from fees for goods and services support the operations.
e primary revenue sources supporting Marina operations are the following: membership dues; boat rack storage; wet slip rental; merchandise sales; and gasoline and diesel sales. Member dues and rack and slip rentals are billed prior to the actual provision of the services,
and are recognized as income when earned.
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inventories - Merchandise and beverage inventories are recorded at the lower of cost or market value using the last-in, first-out method.
Gasoline and diesel fuel inventories are recorded based on a moving, weighted-average cost per gallon for the sales period. Inventories for the
Association’s Marina operations include:
2010
Merchandise and other
Gasoline and diesel fuel

$

2009

19,525
27,212

$

16,974
24,848

$ 46,737

$

41,822

recognition of assets and depreciation Policy - e Association owns and/or maintains significant amounts of real property and improvements as follows:
Common property, in acres
690
Trails, in miles paved
22
Center islands/medians
313
Bridges
9
Lagoons
151
Gatehouses and entrances
7
Roadways, in miles
91
ese properties were, and will be, periodically conveyed to the Association under agreements with developers. e common properties are
real property directly associated with the individual ownership of member properties and are dedicated for the use of the entire community.
ey cannot be sold separately and, thus, have no fair market value other than that related to their intended use. e value of such assets is
not recognized in the financial statements of the Association. e Articles of Incorporation and General Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions permit the Association to participate in mergers and consolidations with other nonprofit corporations organized for the same purposes; mortgage the properties; and dedicate or transfer all or any part of the common properties to any public agency, authority, or utility.
Upon dissolution of the Association, the assets, both real and personal, would be dedicated to an appropriate public agency or activity. All
such actions require approval of two-thirds of the membership.
e Association capitalizes assets acquired with Association funds. Assets donated by members are recorded at fair market value. Property, plant,
and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method at rates that are suﬃcient to amortize the cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives. For the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, the combined
amounts expensed by the Association for depreciation were $631,210 and $595,347, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2010
and 2009, amounts expensed by the Company for depreciation were $34,830 and $40,927, respectively.
Property, Plant, and Equipment consists of the following at December 31, 2010:

Land improvements
Buildings & docks
Equipment
Furniture & computers
Vehicles
Work-in-progress
Less accumulated
Depreciation

Land

association

company

$ 1,078,733
5,193,402
3,011,997
573,469
959,007
11,581

$

724,576
167,856
242,306
-

10,828,189

1,134,738

(5,568,199)

(656,856)

5,259,990

477,882

-

75,000

$ 5,259,990

$ 552,882
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use of estimates - e preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that aﬀect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could
diﬀer from those estimates.
advertising costs - e Company expenses the majority of advertising and other marketing costs when related invoices are received.
reclassifications - Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation.
subsequent events - e Association and the Company have evaluated subsequent events through February 2, 2011, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

noTe 3 - concenTraTion oF crediT risk
e Association and the Company maintain their cash balances at regional banks located in Savannah, Georgia. e Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insured these deposits up to $250,000 per bank. At December 31, 2010, the Company’s cash balances did
not exceed the federally-insured limits. e Association exceeded the federally-insured limits of $250,000 at December 31, 2010 and at
other times throughout the year. However, due to the establishment of nightly operating “REPO Sweep Accounts”, all funds were fully
insured on a daily basis as part of this FDIC-insured program. e Association and the Company have not experienced any losses of such
funds, and management believes the Association and the Company are not exposed to any significant risks.

noTe 4 - associaTion inVesTmenTs
Investment securities are those investments that the Association acquires with the intent and the ability to hold to maturity. Securities
chosen for investment are selected to preserve capital and protect investment principal, to maintain suﬃcient liquidity to meet anticipated needs, and to attain a market rate of return consistent with the preservation of capital.
e short-term investments at December 31, 2010 are Certificates of Deposit, at a predetermined interest rate based on the terms of the
purchase.
e Association adopted the Fair Value Measurement and Disclosures topic of the Codification for the year ended December 31, 2009.
is topic established a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. e three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below:
Level 1

Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the
measurement date for identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities.

Level 2

Quoted prices in markets that are not considered to be active or
financial instruments for which all significant inputs are observable,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3

Prices or valuations that require inputs that are both significant to the
fair value measurement and unobservable.

e following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the investment assets at fair value as of December 31, 2010. As required by this topic, assets are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.
level 1

34

level 2

level 3

Certificates of deposit

$

3,873,000

-

-

Total investment assets at fair value

$

3,873,000

-

-
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noTe 5 - assessmenTs receiVaBle
The Association’s policy is to place liens on owners whose assessments are two months in arrears. Past due assessments of approximately
$45,985 were written off at the end of 2010 per board approval. All of the past due owners, for 2008-2010, have been suspended and
sent to the Association’s attorney to proceed with legal action.

noTe 6 - reserVe Funds
annexation Fund - An annexation fee is paid to the Association as lots initially are sold in Moon River Landing. An Annexation Fund
has been established for collection of these fees. e Association’s Board of Directors has sole approval authority to determine how such
funds are expended. During the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Association did not receive any annexation fees from Moon
River Landing. As of February 2, 2011, the outstanding fees of $319,012 due to the Association per the annexation agreement will be
paid in 2011.
Future major repairs and replacements - e Association’s governing documents authorize the levying of annual assessments, which
provide for the repair and maintenance of drainage facilities, selected assets, and road and trail resurfacing.
It is the practice of the Association to include normal, recurring repair and maintenance of common properties in annual operating budgets. e Association also sets aside in separate repair and replacement capital reserve funds those amounts estimated to be required to meet
future major repair and replacement costs of certain components of common properties. Actual expenditures may vary from the estimated
future expenditures, and variations may be material. If additional funds are needed, the Association has the authority, subject to membership approval, to increase regular assessments, pass special assessments, or delay major repairs and replacements until funds are available.
capital reserve Funds Storm Drain and Flood Water Control and Selected Assets Components - In 2005 and 2006, the Association conducted a study to determine
the physical and operating conditions of, and estimated future costs of major repair and replacements for, such items as the drainage system, nine bridges, the observation tower, roofs, and the administration and marina facilities. e study estimated that the components
in the drainage system had useful lives that ranged from 25 to 80 years, cart bridges 30 years, road bridges from 50 to 80 years, and the
administration and marina facilities from 7 to 50 years. In 2011, an independent engineer will conduct a study to update the valuations
and estimated useful lives of these components.
Equipment Components - Major capital equipment is defined as those items costing $40,000 or more. Major capital equipment includes
a telecommunications system, video monitoring system, vacuum jetter truck, backhoe, front-end loader, street sweepers, automatic gates
at entrances, and forklifts. e study estimated major equipment components had useful lives that ranged from 6 to 15 years.
Road and Trail Resurfacing Components - In 2001, the Association conducted a study to determine the physical and operating conditions
of, and estimated future costs of major repair and replacements for, the road and trail systems. e study estimated that the roads had
useful lives of 15 to 25 years, and the trails from 10 to 20 years, depending on the type of root barrier used. In 2008, a separate Road and
Cart Path Reserve Fund was created. An initial reserve allocation was transferred from the Capital Reserve Fund, using the component
method to calculate the annual reserve allocation, where each component is identified separately. In the Road and Cart Path Reserve
Fund, assets are grouped by their useful lives. For example, roads are grouped together by 15, 20, and 27 year useful lives, and cart paths
are grouped together by eight or 12 year useful lives. During the 2009-2011 Assessment period, the approved annual allocation per the
Assessment voting packet is $545,679 to the Road Reserve and $304,109 to the Cart Path Reserve.
Reserve assessments collected in the Capital Reserve Funds amounted to $1,432,161 in 2010 and $1,349,460 in 2009. During the years
ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, the totals expended from the funds amounted to $940,827 and $977,084.
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noTe 7 - inTerFund BorroWing
In 2002, $500,000 was borrowed from the Reserve Fund to pay oﬀ a portion of the former Yacht Club’s debt. is money was used with the
understanding that it would be paid back into the fund over a 15-year period with interest. As of December 31, 2010, $93,155 is owed to the
Reserve Fund.
e Marinas’ major capital purchases and projects are funded through interfund loans from the Association. As of December 31, 2010, the
balances on those interfund loans totaled $1,607,930, as described below.
In 2005, the Marinas borrowed a total of $1,377,000 from the Operating Fund, primarily to finance the seawall replacement at Landings Harbor. Of this, the Association provided $700,000 with a loan from Wachovia Bank, and the remaining portion from the Operating Fund. In
2009, the Association paid oﬀ the Wachovia Bank loan and, therefore, as of December 31, 2009, the Operating Fund owed the Reserve Fund
$271,454 as part of this loan payoﬀ. is amount was repaid in 2010, satisfying the Operating Fund’s loan obligation to the Reserve Fund.
e repayment schedule by the Marinas to the Association was adjusted in 2010, and the Marinas now are paying back this amount over 30
years, with interest. As of December 31, 2010, a total of $847,619 remains to be repaid by the Marinas to the Operating Fund.
In 2009, the Marinas borrowed $298,000 from the Reserve Fund to pay for the purchase of a dredge used at Landings Harbor. e balance
on this eight-year loan was $238,500 as of December 31, 2010.
In 2010, the Marinas borrowed $214,006 from the Reserve Fund to pay for the purchase of a negative lift used at Landings Harbor. e balance on this 18-year loan was $207,067 as of December 31, 2010.
In 2010, the Marinas borrowed $67,244 from the Reserve Fund to pay for a tarmac extension at Landings Harbor. e balance on this 30year loan was $66,009 as of December 31, 2010.
In 2010, the Marinas borrowed $251,605 from the Reserve Fund to pay for the Delegal Pier Renovation at Delegal Creek Marina. e balance on this 35-year loan was $248,735 as of December 31, 2010.

noTe 8 - Pension Plan
In July 1998, the Association and the Company established 401(k) retirement plans. Employees were eligible to participate in each plan upon
reaching the age of 18 years and completing six months of service. Eﬀective January 1, 2007, the Association eliminated the length of service
requirement. Employees may contribute annually up to the lesser of 20% of their salaries or $16,500 during 2010 and 2009. In 2008, the Association’s plan provided for an employer match of 75% on the first 5% of the salary deferred by an employee. e plan was amended for the
2009 plan year to provide for an employer match of 100% of the first 4% of the salary deferred by an employee. e Company’s plan provides for an employer match of 50% on the first 4% of the salary deferred by an employee. Eﬀective January 1, 2009, the length of service requirement for the Company’s plan was extended to one year.
For the years ended December 31, 2010, and 2009, the Association’s contributions amounted to $230,808 and $238,123, respectively, into
the 401(k) plan. Expenses for the Company amounted to $6,499 and $7,904 for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

noTe 9 - income TaXes
e Association’s and the Company’s income taxes are determined under the asset and liability approach described in the Income Tax topic of
the Codification. e Association and the Company adopted guidance issued by the FASB with respect to accounting for uncertainty in income taxes as of January 1, 2009. A tax position is recognized as a benefit only if it is “more likely than not” that the tax position would be
sustained in a tax examination, with a tax examination being presumed to occur. Once the threshold is met, the amount recognized in the financial statements is the largest amount of tax benefit likely realized on examination. For tax positions not meeting the “more likely than not”
test, no tax benefit is recorded. e adoption had no eﬀect on the accompanying financial statements.
e Association and the Company are subject to U.S. federal income tax as well as income tax of the state of Georgia. e Association and
the Company are no longer subject to examination by taxing authorities for years before 2007. e Association and the Company do not expect the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits to change significantly in the next 12 months. If incurred, the Association and the Company would recognize interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense. e Association and the Company did
not record interest or penalties for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009.
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association - e Association is classified as a nonexempt membership organization for both federal and state income tax purposes for the
years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009. It does not qualify as an exempt organization. e Association is subject to specific rulings and
regulations applicable to nonexempt membership organizations. In general, the Association is required to separate its taxable income and deductions into membership, non-membership, and capital transactions. For federal tax purposes, the Association is taxed on all net income
from non-membership activities, reduced only by losses from non-membership activities. Non-membership income may not be oﬀset by
membership losses, and any excess membership deductions may be carried forward only to oﬀset membership income of future tax periods.
Any net membership income not applied to the subsequent tax year is subject to taxation. e Association files Form 1120, which has graduated rates of 15% to 39% that are applied to net taxable income.
During 2009, the Association experienced a net operating loss (NOL) of approximately $515,000 for income tax purposes. For federal purposes, approximately $436,000 of this NOL was carried back to oﬀset income which was taxable in 2004 through 2008, and a refund of
$142,579 was received in January 2011. e remaining federal NOL of approximately $78,000 will be combined with the 2010 federal NOL
of approximately $422,000, and will be carried forward until 2029 when they begin to expire.
For state purposes, approximately $884,000 in NOLs will be carried forward to oﬀset future state taxable income and will begin to expire
in 2028. A corresponding deferred tax asset of $203,000 has been recorded related to the federal and state NOL carryforward amounts, and
a valuation allowance has been established for the full amount. e entire $15,503 in income tax expense for the year ended December 31,
2010 is current.
company - e Company elected a C-Corporation status for income tax purposes. e provision for income taxes includes current federal
and state income taxes and deferred taxes arising from temporary diﬀerences between income for financial reporting and income tax purposes. Deferred taxes reflect the tax eﬀects of temporary diﬀerences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting, and the amounts for income tax purposes. At December 31, 2010, the Company had a current deferred tax liability and a net
long-term deferred tax asset.
Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax balances as of December 31, 2010 are as follows:
current deferred tax liability:
Depreciation diﬀerence
long-term deferred tax asset:
State NOL deferred asset
Federal NOL deferred asset
Depreciation diﬀerence

$

4,400

$

35,000
48,000
(4,100)
78,900

Less valuation allowance for NOL assets

(41,500)
$

37,400

e Company’s income tax benefit shown on the statement of income consists of the following components:
Current tax expense
Deferred tax benefit

$

45,550

$

45,550

During 2010, the Company experienced a NOL of approximately $143,000 for federal income tax purposes. is NOL will be carried forward to oﬀset taxable income in future years and will expire in 2030. For state income tax purposes, a NOL of approximately $598,000 will
be carried forward to oﬀset taxable income in future years. is NOL includes $148,000 and $450,000 related to 2010 and 2009, respectively, and will begin to expire in 2029. A related deferred tax asset of $83,000 has been recorded, and a valuation allowance for half of this
total has been established.
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noTe 10 - legal maTTers
e prospect that the following claims will result in an outcome unfavorable to the Association is neither probable nor remote. Management believes that the resolution of these matters will not have an adverse impact on the financial statements. No provisions for these matters have been made in the accompanying financial statements.
A lawsuit has been filed against the Association alleging breach of contract, promissory estoppel, negligence, negligent misrepresentation,
and breach of fiduciary duty relating to the storage of an airboat. e Association has answered, denying all claims and asserting aﬃrmative
defenses. e Association intends to defend these claims vigorously. e Association successfully obtained summary judgment, and now the
case is in the appeals process.
A lawsuit was filed against the Association and the Company alleging wrongful death, survivorship pain and suﬀering, injuries and damage
liability, negligence, premises liability, and nuisance. e Association has answered, denying all claims and asserting aﬃrmative defenses. e
Association intends to defend these claims vigorously. In November 2009, the Company was granted a motion for summary judgment and
removed as a defendant in this case. erefore, there are no pending lawsuits related to the Company. In July 2010, the case was turned over
to the appellate court for their review and ruling, which is still pending.

noTe 11 - lines oF crediT
e Company has an unsecured $330,000 line of credit agreement with SunTrust Bank, bearing interest at 2.8% percent over the one-month
LIBOR rate, with a floor of 3%. At December 31, 2010 and 2009, no balance was outstanding under this agreement.
e Association has a secured $5,000,000 line of credit agreement with SunTrust Bank, bearing interest at 2.8% percent over the onemonth LIBOR rate, with a floor of 3%. At December 31, 2010 and 2009, no balance was outstanding under this agreement.

noTe 12 - relaTed ParTY TransacTions
e Association entered into a three-year contract with e Landings Club (“Club”), a separate membership entity that owns and operates
the golf, tennis, swimming, and physical fitness facilities. Under terms of the agreement, the Association provides lagoon maintenance and
security services. e services amounted to $192,580 and $185,709 in 2010 and 2009, respectively. In January 2009, the Association renewed the contract for an additional three years. e amount due to the Association under the contract is $199,713 in 2011.
e Company paid fees for sales guests to use Club amenities, which totaled $13,238 and $34,239 for golf and related expenses during the
years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Additionally, $30,000 was paid by the Company to the Club in 2009 for a membership.

noTe 13 - long-Term deBT
association - Long-term debt consists of a variable rate promissory note in the original amount of $901,355 payable to SunTrust Bank.
e note is payable in monthly installments of principal in the amount of $5,008 plus accrued interest at the three-month LIBOR rate plus
1.22%. A final payment of the unpaid principal balance plus accrued interest is due and payable on January 10, 2017. e note is collateralized by a negative covenant not to encumber the marina real estate and all monies, instruments, savings, checking, and other accounts
that are in SunTrust Bank’s custody. As of December 31, 2010, the debt balance was $352,834, of which $60,091 was current.
In 2005, the Association obtained a $700,000 commercial loan with Wachovia Bank to finance the capital expenditures made in 2005, primarily for the Marina seawall replacement. is loan was a fixed-rate loan for 10 years. e loan was payable in monthly installments of
principal and interest in the amount of $7,879 over a 10-year term, at an interest rate of 6.22% per annum. ere was no penalty for prepayment on this loan. At December 31, 2010, the loan balance was $0, as this was paid oﬀ on July 16, 2009.
Long-term debt consists of the following:
association
Long-term debt
Less: current portion
of long-term debt

$ 352,834
(60,091)
$ 292,743
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Maturities of long-term debt for the next five years and in the aggregate are as follows:
For the year ending
december 31,
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
ereafter

association
$

60,091
60,091
60,091
60,091
60,091
52,379

$

352,834

noTe 14 - comPanY commiTmenTs
e Company leases oﬃce equipment under non-cancelable operating leases expiring in various years through 2014. e Company incurred
rental expense relating to operating leases of $22,232 and $20,304 for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
Minimum annual lease payments are as follows:
For the year
ending
december 31,

annual lease
payments

2011
2012
2013
2014
ereafter

$

16,344
16,344
16,068
10,406
-

$

59,162

noTe 15 - associaTion commiTmenTs
Landscape and Rights-of-Way Maintenance Agreement - In August 1999, ValleyCrest Landscaping, Inc. entered into a five-year agreement
with the Association to provide landscaping and mowing services. In conjunction with that agreement, the Association made available the
north maintenance facility to ValleyCrest for the length of the contract. e contract was renewed in 2005 for a three-year term to coincide
with the three year Assessment Plan of 2006-2008. is contract was renewed in January 2009. e annual payments under this agreement
are as follows:
For the year
ending
december 31,
2011

annual
service
Payments
$ 1,027,050
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Photo by Doug Herrick©

e Association’s Board of Directors authorized a study in 2001 to estimate the remaining useful lives and the replacement costs
of the storm drain, flood water control, road, trail, and bridge components of common property. In 2011, an independent engineer will conduct a study to update the valuations and estimated useful lives of these components.
e Association completed another study in 2005 to estimate the remaining useful lives and the replacement costs of the marina
components of common property. e estimates were obtained from engineers who inspected the property. Replacement costs
were based on the estimated costs to repair or replace the common property components at the date of the study. In 2011, Applied
Technology and Management, Inc. will complete its evaluation that was started in 2010 of the Marinas’ assets to help determine
the useful lives and replacement values.
In 2008, roads and cart paths were segregated into a separate reserve fund. Estimated current replacement costs were updated in
2008.
Other common property and major equipment components are reviewed annually by the Public Works Committee and staﬀ. e
Association also is looking to obtain the expertise of a Reserves Specialist to provide review of our Reserve balance methodology
and valuations.
e following information is based on the 2008 review and a 2009 insurance appraisal review, as well as staﬀ reviews and knowledge, and presents significant information about the components of common property. Amounts are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars.
Per the Association’s funding formula, the Reserve Fund includes the maximum property insurance deductible, as well as replacement costs of critical assets not covered by insurance.
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components

Administration Facilities
Association Signage
Automatic Gates
Backhoe
Cart Paths/Trails
Delegal Structure
Dock Boxes and Power Pedestals
Dock Pilings
Dock Utility Tethers
Field/Park Rehabilitation
Fixed Walkways
Floating Dock Through-rods
Floating Docks
Forklift
Front-end Loader
Fuel Tanks
Gangways
Gate Facilities
Gate Irrigation and Drainage Systems
Harbor Dredge
Harbor Dry Stack Storage
Harbor Electrical Transformer
Harbor Seawall
Harbor Tarmac
IT Equipment
Lagoon Dikes & Structures
Marsh Tower Observation
Other Infrastructure Components
Phone System
Public Works Facilities
Road Bridges
Roads
Storm Drain Pipes
Street Sweepers
Vacuum Jetter Truck
Video Monitoring

estimated remaining
useful life (Years)
1 to 20
0 to 14
1 to 13
2
1 to 27
35
3 to 11
15
3
7 to 10
15 to 22
4 to 14
11
17
1
9 to 14
11
0 to 33
1 to 20
8
17
24
24
29
1 to 7
1 to 31
13
1 to 12
5
10 to 12
9 to 55
0 to 27
1 to 71
2 to 3
2
1 to 7

estimated current
replacement/repair cost
$

105,000
166,000
408,000
80,000
3,121,000
839,000
101,000
30,000
30,000
138,000
380,000
515,000
1,900,000
215,000
50,000
67,000
23,000
77,000
274,000
300,000
600,000
40,000
1,300,000
70,000
293,000
1,752,000
150,000
3,031,000
50,000
120,000
3,456,000
11,881,000
34,591,000
200,000
150,000
81,000

$ 66,584,000
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546 339
546,339

546,339
$

4,752,242
(293,470)
4 957 032
4,957,032

498,260

941,563
(736)
940,827

1,432,161
6,926
1,439,087
,
,

$

$

5,001,373
(640,777)
4 752 242
4,752,242

391,646

977,084
769
977,853

1,349,460
12,575
7,464
1,369,499
,
,

Reserve Funds
Totals

NOTE - The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

$

4,205,903 $
(293,470)
4 410 693 $
4,410,693

$

Reserve Funds
Totals

3:24 PM

-

-

-

Annexation

Year ended
Dec. 31, 2009

2/8/11

Equity, January 1
Transfer to operating fund
Equity December 31
Equity,

498,260

Net revenues

1,439,087
,
,

1,432,161
6,926

941,563
(736)
940,827

$

Expenses
Public works
Income taxes
Total

Revenues
Assessments
Interest earned
Other
Total

Capital Reserve

Year ended
December 31, 2010
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oTher suPPlemenTarY inFormaTion:
deTailed associaTion
and marina Financial resulTs
Excludes Equity in and Results of Operations of
e Landings Company
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$

$

4,489,251
4,489,251
4,937,666

-

3,456
57,310
99,907
448,415

279,131
8,611

$

$

for doubtful accounts was $32,000 and $5,700 as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

- The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

1-Allowance

NOTE

Equity
Members Equity
Total Equity
TOTAL

Long-term liabilities
Long-term debt, net of current portion
Total Long-Term Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable & accrued expenses
Income taxes payable
Current portion of long-term debt
Deferred revenue
Escrow balances and deposits
Accrued payroll & taxes withheld
Total Current Liabilities

$

832,266
832,266
1,245,237

292,743
292,743

120,228

60,091
31,246

28,891

$

$

5,321,517
5,321,517
6,182,903

292,743
292,743

308,022
8,611
60,091
34,702
57,310
99,907
568,643

$

$

100
(853,466)
(853,366)
6,182,903 $

5,248,409

4,957,032
4,957,032
4,957,064

-

32

32

853,466
853,466
4,957,064

11,581

4,092,017

319,012

3,753,020

19,985

19,985

$

$

$

$

10,278,549
10,278,549
11,139,967

292,743
292,743

308,022
8,643
60,091
34,702
57,310
99,907
568,675

100
100
11,139,967

5,259,990

5,879,877

143,667
533,370
46,737
159,368

3,873,000

1,066,425
57,310
1,123,735

Total

$

$

$

$

3,822,400
3,822,400
4,219,086

-

213,388
90,829
396,686

92,469

100
505,387
505,487
4,219,086

1,969,327

51,961
1,744,272

259,436
149,295
67,354

118,000

1,092,559
5,667
1,098,226

Operating

$

$

$

$

$

1,139,386
1,139,386
1,601,668

352,835
352,835

109,447

60,091
39,991

9,365

$

$

(1,185,950)
(1,185,950)
1,601,668 $

2,182,276

605,342

43,788
41,822
83,568

436,164

436,164

Marina

-

4,752,242
4,752,242
4,753,010

-

768

768

680,563
680,563
4,753,010

212,915

3,859,532

319,012

3,540,520

Reserve

December 31, 2009

$

$

$

$

9,714,028
9,714,028
10,573,764

352,835
352,835

101,834
768
60,091
39,991
213,388
90,829
506,901

100
100
10,573,764

4,364,518

118,000
3,540,520
259,436
149,295
430,154
41,822
135,529
6,209,146

1,528,723
5,667
1,534,390

Total

3:25 PM

(1,607,930)
(1,607,930)
1,245,237 $

2,254,463

$

Reserve
Funds

2/8/11

Liabilities and Equity

100
754,464
754,564
4,937,666

Other Assets
Investments in subsidiary
Interfund receivable (payable)
Total Other Assets
TOTAL
$

2,993,946

Property, plant and equipment

37,599
46,737
88,386
(130,000)
598,704

1,046,440
57,310
1,103,750

143,667
214,358
46,737
159,368
1,787,860

$

143,667
176,759

555,982

555,982

119,980

$

119,980

490,458
57,310
547,768

70,982
130,000
1,189,156

$

Certificates of deposit
Investments, short-term
Investments, short-term escrow
Income tax receivable
Other accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Due from (to) other funds
Total Current Assets

Current Assets
Cash & cash equivalents
Cash & money market accounts
Cash held in escrow

Assets

Operating

December 31, 2010
Total
Marina
Operating
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Balance sheets

3,822,400
545,075
4,489,251

Equity, January 1
Transfer to (from) operating fund
Equity, December 31

697,471
631,210
66,261

1,309,264
1
309 264
3,070,916
1,257,470
1,726,416
16,239
7,380,305

$ 5,061,119
1,428,504
618,545
293,014
113,139
53 631
53,631
74,095
435,729
8,077,776

1,139,386
4,961,786
(251,605)
293,470
$
832,266 $ 5,321,517

171,858
227,373
(55,515)

1,257,470

1,257,470

1,429,328

824

$ 1,428,504

$

1,195,731
631,210
564,521

1,309,264
1
309 264
4,012,479
1,257,470
1,726,416
15,503
8,321,132

6,493,280
1,428,504
618,545
293,014
113,139
60 557
60,557
74,095
435,729
9,516,863

4,752,242
9,714,028
(293,470)
$ 4,957,032 $ 10,278,549

498,260

498,260

(736)
940,827

941,563

1,439,087

6 926
6,926

$ 1,432,161

NOTE - The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

525,613
403,837
121,776

1,726,416
16,239
6,122,835

1 309 264
1,309,264
3,070,916

618,545
293,014
113,139
52 807
52,807
74,095
435,729
6,648,448

5,061,119

Total

3,145,997
602,716
$ 3,822,400

450,535
376,848
73,687

1,647,936
(139,548)
5,822,674

1,344,773
1
344 773
2,969,513

646,072
281,761
61,999
84 923
84,923
63,114
309,625
6,273,209

$ 4,825,715

Operating

1,064,316
38,061
$ 1,139,386

255,508
218,499
37,009

1,315,615

1,315,615

1,571,123

1 957
1,957

$ 1,569,166

1,097,689
595,347
502,342

1,344,773
1
344 773
3,946,597
1,315,615
1,647,936
(138,779)
8,116,142

$ 6,175,175
1,569,166
646,072
281,761
61,999
99 455
99,455
63,114
317,089
9,213,831

5,001,373
9,211,686
(640,777)
$ 4,752,242 $ 9,714,028

391,646

391,646

769
977,853

977,084

7,464
1,369,499

12 575
12,575

$ 1,349,460

Total

3:25 PM

Excess of revenues over expenses
before depreciation
Depreciation
Net revenues (expenses)

$

$

Operating

Year ended
December 31, 2009
Reserve
Marinas
Funds

2/8/11

Expenses
Community services
Public works
Marina
General & administrative
Income taxes (benefits)
Total

Revenues
Assessments
Marina
Vehicle registration
Service agreements
Architectural review fees
Interest earned
Telecommunications leases
Other
Total

Year ended
December 31, 2010
Total
Reserve
Marinas
Operating
Funds
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statements of revenues and expenses and
changes in members’ equity
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$

547,768

1 098 226
1,098,226

(550,458)

22,376

22,376

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the year for interest by The Landings Association, Inc.
Cash received during the year for taxes by The Landings Association, Inc.

Cash and cash equivalents, December 31

Cash and cash equivalents
equivalents, January 1

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayments under long
long-term
term bank agreement
Repayments under long-term agreements
Borrowings (lendings) under long-term agreements
Net cash (used) provided by financing activities

9,079
3,456
8,611
143,620
598,165

186,662
(156,078)

(19,021)

403,837
25,524
5 628
5,628
(134,929)

121 776
121,776

$

$

555,982

436 164
436,164

119,818

(60 091)
(60,091)
(110,874)
532,855
361,890

(299,560)

(299,560)

(121,607)
57,488

(8,745)

19,526

5,420
(4,915)
(4,818)

227,373
769

1 534 390
1,534,390

(430,640)

(60,091)
(60
091)
(88,498)
532,855
384,266

(1,728,015)
259,436
(1,980)
(1,470,559)

19,985

-

19,985

88,498
(532,855)
(444,357)

201,331
3,540,520
(3,753,020)
(11,169)

$

6,942
-

$ 1,123,735

1 534 390
1,534,390

(410,655)

(60,091)
(60
091)
(60,091)

(1,526,684)
3,799,956
(3,755,000)
(1,481,728)

9,079
(5,289)
7,875
1,131,164

9,079
(5,289)
8,611
22,013
655,653

564 521
564,521

206,188
(156,078)

$

206,188
(156,078)

(736)
(22,013)
475,511

498 260
498,260

Total

631,210
26,293
5 628
5,628
(129,509)
(4,915)
(23,839)

$

$

Reserve
Funds

631,210
26,293
5 628
5,628
(129,509)
(4,915)
(23,839)

66 261
66,261

$ 1,103,750

(55 515) $
(55,515)

Total
Operating

970 104
970,104

$ 436,164

503 464
503,464

(67,300)

(20,088)
(80,179)

367,956
(158,943)
128,122

(60 091)
(60,091)

(101,705)

(101,705)

(69,052)
114,584

(8,349)
(146,127)

(13,140)

95,907
11,015
(8,371)

218,499
(2,807)

$ 37,009
37 009

Marinas

(526 899)
(526,899)

(191,705)

(484,214)
292,509

382,391
478,770

21,733

(205,283)
(119,967)

(2,508)

376,848
(20,900)
(98 186)
(98,186)
70,955

73 687
73,687

$ 1,098,226

$

Operating

$

$

-

33 561
33,561

(33,561)

(347,868)
(347,868)

277,907

277,907

(41,907)
(313,339)
36,400

391 646
391,646

Reserve

1 507 129
1,507,129

27,261

(586,990)
(586
990)
(586,990)

(585,919)
570,416
(15,503)

13,384
(146,127)
(41,907)
629,754

(218,423)
(119,967)

595,347
(23,707)
(98 186)
(98,186)
166,862
11,015
(10,879)

502 342
502,342

$

19,813
1,240

$ 1,534,390

$

Total

3:25 PM

(1,428,455)
259,436
(1,980)
(1,170,999)

$

Marinas

Year ended
December 31, 2009

2/8/11

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures
Proceeds from sale of short-term investments
Purchase of certificates of deposit
Net cash (used) provided by investing activities

Adjustments to reconcile excess of revenues
(under) over expenses to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation
Provision for doubtful accounts
Decrease (increase) in income taxes receivable
(Increase) decrease in other receivables
(Increase) decrease in inventories
Increase in prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable &
accrued expenses
Decrease in escrow balances & deposits
Increase (decrease) in accrued payroll
& taxes withheld
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenues
Increase (decrease) in income taxes payable
Cash transfers (to) from other funds
Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Excess of revenues (under) over expenses

Operating

Year ended
December 31, 2010
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The landings associaTion Vision
(desired future state):
We continue to be the most desirable private residential community in the coastal southeast.

Our Vision is attained through a focus on these enduring principles:
eFFecTiVe and FinanciallY-sound goVernance
The community functions under a dedicated policy-making Board of Directors elected by the community which tasks its policies to an
effective team operated by a General Manager and qualified management staff. The governance structure is supported by committees of
residents that provide high-quality input on both policy and operational issues. Town hall meetings on vital community issues and periodic surveys help keep the leadership attuned to the pulse of its residents. The operative structure of the community is a comprehensive
hierarchy of self-developed governing documents consisting of covenants and operating guidelines that provide a sound structure for visionary leadership. Our financial management evolves by extending the vision through sound economic decisions based on current needs
and reserves for future contingencies.

susTaining The BeauTY oF our naTural and deVeloPed enVironmenT
The Landings is a unique blend of breathtaking natural vistas preserved through managed development. Entering the community, one
is delighted by the quiet beauty of the coastal marshes and pristine waterways that provide a feeling of wellbeing and optimism. A strong
appreciation of the distinctive eco-system has driven its preservation. As a result, we maintain a strong advocacy for a sustainable green
environment. Thoughtful development has led to beautiful, high-quality homes strategically placed in harmony within this natural environment. Camellia, crepe myrtle, moss-laden live oak, and azalea complement the beauty of well-maintained landscapes. Egret, eagle,
heron, and other wildlife flourish in and around our many lagoons. A quaint village provides convenience through a variety of diverse
services for shoppers who often arrive in golf carts. The Landings is what you have been looking for.

FosTering a connecTed and caring communiTY
Landings residents are creators and innovators in shaping our social and civic experiences. They contribute, as individuals and groups,
in powerful and meaningful ways that further strengthen connections and relationships across the community. A strong self-governing
organization supports and facilitates the satisfaction of our residents’ needs. New arrivals are warmly welcomed to enjoy our active, diverse, and culturally-stimulating lifestyle. There is a distinct sense of belonging and caring for one another.

eFFecTiVe markeTing oF The landings
Positive publicity, marketing programs, and external communication make The Landings well known nationally as a premier community. Professional, targeted efforts encompass national, state, and local communication that draws interest to the community’s outstanding attributes that make it a special place to live. We have created an environment in which each citizen feels confident and comfortable
in recommending our community as a place to live. Our sustaining aspiration is that “one hundred percent of our residents love everything about our community,” thus assuring that the people who live here are our most valuable ambassadors.

PoWerFul inTernal and eXTernal communicaTion
Every resident of The Landings and interacting agency is attuned to the issues and direction of the community. Communication at The
Landings encourages the full participation of every resident on every issue. We provide tailored outreach to all Association members, ensuring a choice of personal or automated service. Our services for registration, licensing, and permitting are available electronically to make
it easy for residents to get what they need and to comply with the responsibilities of ownership. County, city, and state governments are
linked with residents through access provided by the Association. Important political representatives and regional partners are identified
and kept abreast of Landings issues on a real-time basis so that our interests are well served.

47

AR guts 2010 REVISED.qxd:Layout 1

2/8/11

3:25 PM

Page 48

e landings association 2010 annual report
Production Acknowledgements

Content/Financial Editor

karl stephens
Finance Director/CAO
karls@landings.org

Financial Editor

judy spooner
Controller
judys@landings.org

Audit Conducted by

shannon l. Brett, cPa, cFe
Holland, Henry & Bromley, LLP
www.hhbcpa.com

Graphic Design

doré ayers
Creative Director, Community Relations
dorea@landings.org

Cover Photography
Delegal’s Perfect Storm

doug herrick
Doug Herrick Atelier
www.dougherrick.com

Contributing Photography

doug herrick
www.dougherrick.com
Fred langley
lang7119@me.com

Portrait Photography

Tom guest
Guest Photography, Savannah
www.guestphotography.com

Printing & Fulfillment

Brian harn
e Print Shop
www.theprintshop.net

e Landings Association respects and upholds the legal rights of our photographers
and image authors. It is unlaWFul to reproduce images that are copyrighted without the express written permission of the person or entity that created the original work.
If you would like to use or purchase any copyrighted image(s) presented in e Landings Association’s 2010 Annual Report, please contact the artist directly.

AR cvr 2010:Layout 1

2/8/11

9:49 AM

Page 1

e Landings Association
2010 Annual Report

e Landings Association, Inc.
600 Landings Way South
Savannah, Georgia 31411
www.landings.org

